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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IndoStar Home Finance Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information ahd according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Compantes Act,
2013 (“the Act™ in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
tme Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rufes, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
al 31 March 2021, and its profit, its totai comprehensive income, its cash flows anél the
changes in equity for the yedr ended on that date,

Basis for Opinicn

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial starements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
othar ethical responsibilities. in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emiphasis of Mattar

We draw attention to Note 30(G) of the financial statements, in which the Company
aescribes the continuing uncertainties arising from the. COVID 19 pandemic. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Tnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board's report hut dees not
incivde the financial statements and our auditor's réport thereon. The management
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discussion and analysis and Board's report and its annexures are expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report,

» Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materiaily inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

« When we read management discussion and analysis and Board's report and its
annexures, If we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are reguired
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as reguired under SA 720
‘The Auditors responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in eguity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principies generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with. the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irreguilarities; selection and application: of appropriate accounting policies;  making
judgments.and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial staternent that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the
Cornpany’s ability to continue as a going cencern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are aiso responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process,

fuditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial sratements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, ang fo issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinfen. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, hut is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonabty
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be

expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basls of these

financia statements. -

As

part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
pur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
inteéntional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in  the circumstances. Under
section 143(3){1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness. of such controls.

Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting poiiciés used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continué as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on' the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern. '

Evaluate the overali presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
Vi . . + o . - e
|pc!udmg-.the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
Iransactions and events In a rmanner that achieves fair presentation.

@btain‘ sufficiant appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
Qo’:‘npany to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Mai:a_riaiity is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial staternents that, individually

or

h aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably

knc;_)i.gviedgeabée user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in

i:_.zating_ the results of our work: and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified

is§ratements in the financial statements.

rommunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
ined scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

‘ j%ien‘ci'es in internal cantrol that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiled
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other” matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company as of and for the year ended March
31, 2020 prepared in accordance with Ind AS included in this financial statement have been
audited by the predecessor auditor. The report of the predecessor auditor on these
comparative financial information dated June 17, 2020 expressed an unmodified opinion.

Ou_r--opi’ni_on‘ on the financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Reguiatory
Requirements below is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢ The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
" of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A, Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial

reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion .and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

unununun
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. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Cornpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the -explanations given to
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial

position in its financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms -of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B".a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registrati.qgﬂq{ 117366W/W-100018)
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Neville M. Daruwalfa

{Partner)

(Membership Mo. 118784)
(UDIN: 21118734AAAADBG162)

Place: Mumbal
Date: 14 June 2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Ragulatory
Reqguirements’ section of our report of even date}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 2 of Section 143 of the Comipanies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reperting of IndoStar Home
Finance Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controis

The Company’s management [s responsible for establishing and maintaining intermal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of interpal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
ard errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
fmanual reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
acco; dance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financiai
-Reportmu (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and: the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(1G) of the Companies Act,
2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrels. Those Stapdards and
fheliGuidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform
thejauait to obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequate internai financiai controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and f such controls operated
a‘u_g__::twe]y in all matenal respects,

Cut audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
thei: internal  financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
ctuvenesc Qur audit of Internal financial controls: over financial reporting included
sining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
risk that & material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating ‘the design and
iting effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
ected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
terial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

»ibelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
asic for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system aovar
cial reporting.
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Meaning of Internat Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financal control over financial reporting is a procass designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A cempany's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable delall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the .assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
rransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have & materiai effect on the financial statements.

Tnfierent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controis over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evajuation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal finandal control over financia! reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate:

Opjnion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
opérating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential companents
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registratioam%117366\WW~100018)

E"S@%{%a},wwﬂ J’?

."Neville M. Daruwalla
{Partner)

{Membership No. 118784)
(UDIN: 21118784AAAADE6162)

Pléi:e: Mumbat
Date: 14 June 2021
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Refarred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

{(iY(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(iY(b)The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets tc cover all the items in a
phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reascnable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of jts assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given. to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(iY(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land
and building and hence reporting under clause {i}{c} of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

{ii) ;é;‘f‘he Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting urider clause {ii) of the.
CARO 2016 is not applicable.

(iii:_)%’:The Comipany has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189.of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv): In our opinion and according to the information and- explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies AcE,
2013 in respect of grant of loans to-director, investments made and guarantees provided. The
Company has not provided any security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of
the Act.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any; deposit during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

(vi_)éHaving regard to the nature of the Company’s business, reporting under clause (vi) of
CARG 2016 is not applicable.

(viij‘ According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(vii}{a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Incaome-tax, Goods and Service Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. The
provisions relating to Sales tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Vaiue Added Tax and
corresponding cess is not applicable to the Company.

{vii}(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues
in drrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payabie. The provisions relating to Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Vaiue
Added Tax and corresponding cess is not applicable to the Company.
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(vii){c) There are no dues of Income-tax and Goods and Service Tax as on March 31, 2021 on
account of disputes. The provisicns relating to Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and
value Added Tax is not applicable to the Company.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions,
banks and Government, The Company has not issued any debentures.

{ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the
purposes for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application of
proceeds. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer / further
public offer {including debt instruments).

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

(xil) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii} of the CARC
2016 Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the mformation and explanations given to us the
Company Is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accouriting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully of partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under
clause (xiv) of CARQ 2016 i5s not appiicable to the Company.:

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors: or
directors of its holding or subsidiary company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Seils LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration hg. 117366W/W-100018)
i
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L Neville M. Daruwalla
{Parther)
{Membership No. 118784)
(UDIN: 21118784AAAADB6162)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14 June 2021



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
[CIN: UBSI90IMH2016PTC271587)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs]

Particulays- Note As at As at
31 March 2021 3% March 2020
1. ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 565.29 1,659.96
Bank balances other than cash.and cash a
equivalents 26028 -
Loans 5 §3,822.39 74,842.51
Investments 6 500.02 -
QOther financial assets 7 2,684.48 847.66
87,832.46 221,150.13
Mon-financial asseis )
Current tak assets (net] 8 223.50 | 21978
Defarred tax assets {net]' 9 - 466.07
Property, plant and equipment 10 17177 177.93
Assets hald for sale 11 477.48 1,172.76
Intangible assets 12 -103.98 75,84
Other non-financial assets 13 225.33 85.00
: 1,202.08 2,200.38
TOTAL ASSETS 89,034.54 79,350.5%
f. LEABILITIES AND ECLITY
LABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 14
{i} total outstanding to micro-enterprises and
smali enterprises 0.32 ”
{ii) total nutstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 495,58 608.93
Debt securities - -
Borrowings i5 63,984,456 58,354.33
Other financial fiabilities 15 2,536.49 1,576.85
&7,016.85 60,540.11
Mon-financial liahilities
Provisions 7 £0.12 56.15
Deferred tax liabllities {net} g 22572 -
Qther non-financial liabilities 18 202.55 107,92
488,39 164.07
TOTAL LIABILITIES £7,505.24 60,704.18
Equity .
Equity shara capital 19 20,000.00 20,000.00
QOther aquity 20 1,529.30 {1.353.67)
TOTAL EQENTY N 21,523.30 18,645.33
TOTAL LIABHITIES AND EQENTY £9,034.54 75,350.51
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 46
in terms of our report attached For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of
For Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP IndoSta™ore Finance Private Limited
ored Accountants 4 i ﬁ:_,‘
i PO
U o Yl
Newlig,mf Daruwafla Benaifer Palsetia

Directar
‘DIN: 08089220

Pariner

ﬁ ’
Prashant Shetty
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: june 14, 2021 Date: lune 14, 2021

W

Director
DiMN: OB678348

Priva’ishah
Company Sacretary




tndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
(CIN: UB5980MH 2016PTC271587)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency : ndian Rupees in lakhs)

Particutars Note Far the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from operations 21
Interestincome 10,846.17 BE74.16
Fees and commission income 12328 157.58
Net gain on fair value changes 92,09 112.31
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments measured at:
amortised cost category 2,156.28 623.67
Total revenue from operations 13,217.82 9,567.73
Other income z 188.93 14617
Total Incame 13,406.75 9,713.90
Expensas
Finance costs 3 5,658.05 4,61259'
tmpairment on financial instruments 24 955,10 497.88
Employee benefit expanses 25 1,808.40 2,365.58
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 26 200.82 186,55
Other expenses 27 917.15 1,099.58
Total expenses 9,5358,52 8.762.28
Profit before tax 3,867.23 951.62
Tax expense:
1. Current tax 28 380.50 N
2. Deferred tax expense flincome). 9 651.60 {468.11)
Total tax expanses. 1,072.10 {468.11)
Profit after tax 2,795.13. 1,419.73.
Other comprehensive income
Items that wil not be reclassified to profit and loss
~ Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 3.07 8.10
- Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss {0.19) {2.04)
2.88 6.06
Other comprehensive incame for the period, net of tax 2,88 606
Tetal comprehensive income for the period 2,798.0% 1,425.79 |
Earriings per equity share 29
Basic earaings per share {Rs.} 140 0.71
Diluted earnings per share {Rs.) 1.40 0.71

{Equity Share of face-vaiue of Rs.10 each)

See acrompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 46

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitta Haskins & Sells LLP
hartered Accountants

‘ 's'i\e%éw)}’\{
Nevié‘:;;. Daruwalla

Partner

Place: Mumbai .
Date: June 14, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ejit Meénon
Director
DiN: 08089220

=

Prashant Shetty
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: lune-14, 2G21

r Home Finance Private Limited

P Wwﬁ P
Benaifer Palsetiz

Director
DIN: DB&72348

Priyal Shah
Company Secretary




indosStar Hame Finance Private Limited

{Citi: UB5950MH2016PTC271557)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2621
{Cutrency ! Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Partlculars -For the year ended For the year ended -
31 March 2023, 31 March 2020
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax ) . 3,867.23 951.52-
Adjustments for :
fnterestincome on financial assets {10,846.17) (8,674.16)
Finance costs 5,858,05 4,612.59
Depreciation and amortisation expensa 200.82 186.55
Frovisions for expected eredit loss 855,10 493.64
Fravisien for gratuity and leave encashment B.88) 3132
Employee share based payment expense 24.96 54.66
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment 8.98 -
Gain on salefrevaluation of investments (32.09) {112.31}
{164.00} {2,456.09)
Interest income realised an financial assets 10,713,095 8,327.86
Finance costs paid {6,313.08) {4,612.59]
Cash g ted from operating activities before warking capital change: 4, 236.95 1,259.18
Adjustments:
[Incveasal/Decrease in lozns and advances (8,332.35) {21,983.86)
{Increase)/Decrease in other finandal assets {1,216.19) {828.43}
{Increase)/Decrease In ather non-financial assets {140.33) {954.05}-
Increasef{Decrease) in trade payable {113.03} 193.38
Increasaf{Dacrease) in-ather Anancial liabitities 96271 305.31
Increasef{Decrease} in ather non-finandial liabilities 1.56 {101.06)
increasef{Decrease} in provisions - {9.39)
Cash {used in}/generated from operating activitles {6,200.69} (21,618.92)
Taxes paid {384.21) [212.22)
Net cash [used in}/generated from operating activitles {A} {6,584.90) {21,831.14)
B Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {3.65] {59.31}
Purchase of Intangibile assets [102.68). {42.68}
Sale of property, plant and equipmant Q.30 -
Procesdsf{Investment) in bank deposits of maturity [260.28) -
greater than 3 months net) .
[Acquisition}/Redemption of FYTAL investments {net) [407.93) 112.31
Nat cash {used in)/generated from Investing activitles {B) 1771.24) 10.32
€ €ash flows from ficancing activitles
Proceeds from borrowings: 40,660.08 22,290.93
Repayments towards borrowings {34,374.92} {1,5930.56)
Payment of lease tiahilities [23.60) {22.94)
et cash {used in}fgeneratad from financing activitias {T) £,261.48 20,337.43
Het Increasef{decrease) In cash and cash equivalents {A) « (B) + (C} {1,084.66) (2,483.39)
Cash ard Cash Eq atthe bag 2 of the year 1,655.56 3,143.37
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year £65.29 1,659.96
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalants with the halance sheet
Cash on hand 1.01 413
Balances with hanks
- in current accounts 564.28 1,655.86
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - -
Tatal 565,29 1,659.95
See & ying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 46
In terms of our repert attached for and pn behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP ndoStar Hgme Finance Private Limited
A ered Aceountants -—
L] ‘ . o
Neviyle Mﬂ.damwalla Benaifer Palsetia

Partner”

Piace: Mumbai
Date: lune 14, 2021

Director
DIN: 08085220

Prashant Shetty
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai-
Date: lune 34, 2021

Diractor
DIN: 0B678348

o
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Priyal Shah
Campany Secretary
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Indo5tar Home Firrance Privata Eimited
{CIN: USS990MH2016PTC271587)

‘Statement of Changes in Equity {SOCIE) for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency ; Indian Rupees in lakhs}

{a} Equity share capital of face value of s, 10/- each Note Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 20,000.00
Shares issued during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1% 20,0080.00
Batance as at 1 April 2020 20,000.00
Shares issued during the year -
Balance asat 21 March 2021 19 20,000.00
{b} Other eguity
Reserves and surplus Capital
Particutars Statutory Reserves ufs Retained earnings carribution from Total
29C ) Holding Company
Balance at 1 Aprit 2019 853 {2,514.54} 7229 {2,834.12}
Profit for the year - 1,419.73 - 1,419.73
Transfer from Retained Earnings 283.95 {283.95) - -
Gainfloss on re-measurement of defined benefit plans - 6.06 - 6.06
Share based payment expense - - 54.66 5465
Balance at 31 March 2020 292.48 1,773.10 126,95 {1,353.67)
Balance at § April 2020 29248 {1,773.10) 126,95 (1,353.67}
Profit for the year - 2,795,183 - 2,795.13
Transfer from Retzined Earnings 559.03 {555.03) - -
Galnfloss on re-measurement of defined Benefit plans - 2.88 - 2.88
Share based payment expense - - 84.95 84.96
Balante at'31 March 2{21 B51.51 465,88 21151 1,529.36

in terms of aur report attached
For Beloltte Hasking & Sells LLP

h{teréd Accountants

W W
Y,

' } W

Nerlgjlg:;"ﬂ. Grruwaila
Partifer

Place: Mumbat
Date: June 14, 2021

Fer and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of

DIN: 08089220

s

Prashant Shetty
Chief Finandal Gfflcer

Place: Mumbal
Date: June 14, 2021

o

Benalfer Palsetia
Director
DIN; 08678348

Priyal Shah
Campany Secretary




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: 165 390MH2016PTC271587)

Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency 1 Indian Rupees.in 1akhs)

1 Corporate Information
tndoStar Home Finance Private Limited {‘the Company’} was incorporated on lanuary 01, 2016 and is dumiciled in india. The Company is
wholly owned subsidiary of IndoStar Capltal Finance Limited. The Company is engaged in housing finance husiness and registered with
Natianal Housing Bank {'NHB" as housing finance Company (HFC) not accepting public deposits, as defined under section 29A of the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

2 Basls of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

2,1 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards. {ind AS'} as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act’) read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
‘Rulles, 20185, as amended from time to time. The financial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost convention, as modified
by the appiication of fair value measurements required or aflowed by relevant accounting standards. Accounting policies have been
consistently applied to all periads presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are prepared on a golng concern hasis, as the management is satisfied that the Company shall be able to contlnue
its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern assumption.
In making this assessment, the management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future -ennditions,
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resourcas. The outbreak of COVID-19 has not affected the going concern
assumpticn of the Company.

2.2 Presenlation af financiat statements
The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in-the Division ! to Schedule
111 to the Azt applicable for Non Banking Finance Companies {“NBFC"}. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as
per the requirernents of Tnd AS 7 “Statemént of Cash Flows”, The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and
Statemant of Profit and Loss, as prescribed i the Schedule lto the Act, are présented by way of notesforming part of the financial
statements aiong with the othier notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards,

An analysis regarding recavery of settlement of assets and liabifities of the Company as on balance sheet dates, within 12 months after the
reporting date {current] and maore than 12 maonths after tha reporting date {non—current).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet; They are only offset and reported net when, in
addition to having an unconditiona! legally enforceahie rlght to offset the recognlsed amounts withaut being contingent on a future event,
the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

- the normal course of business
- the event of default
- the event of insolvency of bankruptcy of the Comiparyyf or its counterparties

4.3 Significant Accourtting Policies

al  Financial instruments
Finanicial assets and financat iiabilities can be termed as financial instruments.
Fisancial instruments are rezognised when the Company becomes & party to the contractual terms of the instruments,

(i} Classification of Finaucial instrurnents

Tha Company classifies its finoncial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to-be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assats to be measwrad at fair value through-other comprehensive Income

5. Financial assets to he measured at fair value through profit orlose account

‘i’he classification depends op the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company’s business model for managing
fmanc:ai assets.

The Campany classifies its financial labilities at amartised cost unfess it has designated fiabilities at fair value through the profit and loss
Sccount. or i5 required to measure liabiities at fair value through profit or joss {FYTPL) such as derivative liabilities. Financial llabiiities,
other than loan cormmitments and financial guarantees, are measured at FYTPL when they are derivative instruments or the fair value
destgnation is applied.

Transaction costs directly pertaining to-the acquisition or issue of financial instruments are added o or deducted from the initiat
measurement amount of tha instrument except where the instrurnent is inltially measured as fair value througn profit or lass.

e
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IndaStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIM: UG5990MH2016PTC271.587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Curréncy © Indian Rupees in Jakhs)

{il) Assessment of business rmotel and contractual cash flow characteristics for financial assets

Businass model assessment

The Company datermines its business mode| at the level that best refiects how it manages groups af financial assets to achieve its business
objective. The Company's business medel determines whather the cash flows will be generated by collecting cantractual cash flows, selling
financia! assets or by.both,

The Company's business model is assessed at portfolio level and not at instrument taval, and is based on observable factors such as:

{i) How the performance of the businass model and the financial assets held within that business modat are evaluated and reported to the
-antity's key management personnel;

{it) The risks that affect the performance of the business moda] and, in particular, the viay-those risks are managed;

{iii) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment. The business model
assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarias into account,

Solely payment of principal and interest {SPPI) test

Subsequent to the assessment to the relevant business madel of the financial assets, the Company-assesses the contractual terms of
‘principal’ for the purpose af this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at inlifal recopriition and may change.over the life of
the financal asset. The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the canstderation for the time
vahie of money and credit risk.

{iti| Initial measurement of financial instruments
The cassification of finanaal instruments at initiai-recognition tdepends an their contractual terms and the business modal for managing.
the instruments. Financial nstruments are initially measured-at their fair value,

{iv] Ctassification of Financial Instruments as per pusiness model and SPPI test

{_a] ioans and Debt instrisments at amortised cost

A ‘loan or debt instrument” is'measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

i] The asset s held within a business model whose ohjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii) The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymeuts of principai and Interest {SPPI} on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initinl measurement, such financlal assets are subsequently measured at amaortized cost using the -effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calcutated by taking into account-any discount or premium on acquisition-aad fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is tncluded in.interest ncome in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognized
w the profit or loss.

{h} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH
-Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assetsdre held within a businzss model
whose objectiveis achievad by bath collecting cantractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to sole payments of principal and
intarest on the principal amount autstanding and by selling financial assets.

{c) Financial assats at fair vatue thraugh profit or loss {(FVTPL]

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those that are either held for trading and have been either designatad by
shanagement-upan initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109, Management only
designates an fnstrument at FYTPL upoen initial recognition when one of the following criteria are miet {such designation is deterrnined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis):

The designation eliminatas, or siznificantiy reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from miessuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on themana different basis.
Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss.

{d} Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is
cateulated: by taking into account any discount or prefmium.en issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR, A compound
financtal instrument which contains both 3 liability and-an equity component is separated at the issue date.

{e] Financial guarantees

financial guaranteas are initially recognised in the financial statements {within Provisions} at fair value, baing the pramium/deemed
premium received. Subsequent o initial recognition, the Company’s lability under each puarantee. s measured at the higher of {1} the
amount initially recognised less cumutative amortisation recognised. in the Statzrment of Profit and Loss and (i) the amount of loss
allawance, The premium/deemed prémium is recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss on & .sEraight Jine basis over tha life of the
guarantee.




IndoStar Homa Finance Private Limited
{CINURS2S0MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Currency ; Indian Rupees in lakhs}

k)

{f) Undrawn loan cemmitments
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of tha commitment, the Company is required to provide a
loan with pre-specifted terms to the customer. Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

{v) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not reclassify its financlal assets subsequent to their initia recogrition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in
which the Company acguires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.

{vi) Derecognition of financial assets in the following circumstances

(a) Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the
extent that, substantiatly, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, ta the extent that ap
impairment loss has not aiready been recorded. The newly recognised foans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes,
uniess the new loan is deemed to be credit-impaired at the origination date,

i the modification does not result In cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognitton, Based on
the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records @ modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impatrment
loss has not already been recorded.

{b] Derecognition of financial assets other than due to-substartial modification

Financial assets

A financial asset or-a part of financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows fram the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies far derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either;
- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to recéive cash flows frorn the finandcial asset; or
- It retams the rights to the cash fiows, but hds assumed an obligation to pay the recelved cash flows.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either;

- The Company has transferred substantially alf the risks and rewards of the asset; ar

- The Company has.neither transferred nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
assed

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ahility to sell the assat in 1ts entirety to an

‘unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally anid without imposing additional restrictions on the fransfer,

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the
asset continues to be recogriised only to the extent of the Company’s cantinuing tvalverment, in which case, the Company also retognises
an assoctated lizbility. The transferred asset and the associated liahility are measured on a basts that reflacts the rights and obligaticns that
the Company has retained.

[vii) Derecognition of Financial liahilities

A financlal liability is derecogntsed when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability is repiaced by another from the same lender on substantizlly different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
madified, such an exchange or modification is treatad as 2 derecognition of the original liabiity and the racognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying vatue of the original financia! lability and the cansideration paid is recogrised in profit or loss.

Write off

The Company writes off @ financial asset when there Is infofmation indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is'no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company's
recovery procedures, teking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoverias macde are recognised in profit or loss,

Fair Value Measurement

Qo nitiai recognition, alf the financial instruments are measurad at fair value, For subsequent feasuremaent, the Company measuras
certain categories of financial instruments at fair value on each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The fairvalue measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Eability takes place either:

i. Inthe principal market, for the asset or liability, or
ii. In the absence of 2 principal marker, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Nability




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: URSD90MH20D16PTC2 IS8T

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3% March 2021
{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs}

c)

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant obsarvable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable Inputs.

in order to show how falr values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as
summarised below:

Fair values are categorized into different fevels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technliques as follows.
Leval 1. gquoted prices in active markets for idantical assets ar liabllities. '

Level 2: inputs other than quotad prices included in Level 1 that are observabie for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectiy.
Level 3vinputs for the asset orliability that are not based on observable market data,

if the inputs used to measure the Fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different leveis of the falr value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized In its entirety in the same level of the fair valua hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant ta the
entire measurament,

The Company recognises transfers betwesn lavels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred, if any.

Property plant and equipment

Recopnition and measurament

Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE) is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benelits assoclated with 1t will flow to the
company and'the cost can be measured refiably

Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purthase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs refating to
acquisition of assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the year till such assets are ready to ba put to use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase grice.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of such assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statemenit of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsaguent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate assel, as appropriate only if it is probable that the
future econarmic benefits assaciatéd with the [tem wil fiow to the Cumpany and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The

-careying amount of any compenent accaunted for as 3 separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repair and maintenance are

cnarged to the Statement.of Frofit and Loss during thé reparting peried in which they are incurred.

Dapraciation
Depreciation is provided on $traight Line Method {'SLM'}, which reflects the management's estimate of the usefll life of the respective
assats. The estimated usefut life used to provide depreciation are as follows:

. . ‘Usefii life as prascribed
Particulars Estnme;:ed useful life by by Schedula Il of the
the Cormpany Companies Act 2013
Cotaputers 3 years 3 years
Office Equipment 5 yedrs 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5'years 10 years
Servers and networks 5 years 6 years

Froperty, glant and sgupment items individually costing lass than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.
teasehald improvement is-amortised on Straight Line Mathod aver the tease term, subject o a maximuin of 60 months.
Usefu life of assets different from prescribed in Schedule 1 of the Act has been estimated by management and supparted by technicat

assassrment.

Depraciation on assets acauired/sold during the vear is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statemant of Profit and Loss till the date of
sale.

The useful lives and the method of depreciation of property; plant and eyuipment are reviewed at ezch findndial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life 2re accounted for by changing the amo:tisation period or methodoiogy,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: UB5990MH2GIBPTC271587)

Notes to the firancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency . Indian Rupees in 1akhs)

d)

e}

intangible assels

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected fulure-economic benefits
that are attributable to it will flow to the Company, Intanglble assets acquired separately are measured on inttial recognition at cost.
Following initia} recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost léss accumulated amortisation. The cost of intangible assets acquired in'a
bisiness combination is their fair value as at the date of acqulsition

Amortisation

intangible assets aré amortised using the straight line method over a period of 3 years, which s the management's estimate of its useful
life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least as at each financial year end. if the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amuortlsation period is changed accardingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposai
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as incormé ar expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss;

trapairmeant

{i} Financial Assets

{a) Expected Cradit Loss (ECL} principles

Tha Company records allowance for expected ‘credit losses for alt loans, dabt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with uadrawn
loan’ commitmants; in this section all referred to as *finandial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS
1046

For the computation of ECL on the financial instruments, the Comipany categories its financial instruments as menfioned below:

Stage 1: All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at
the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are. ¢lassified under this stage. The Company classifies all advances
upte 30 days overdue under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the-credit risk has improved and the lgan has been
reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: All exposures whera there has been a stgnificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credlt impaired are
dlsssified under this stage. Exposures are classified as Stage 2-when the amount is due formore than 30 days but do not exceed 50 days.

Stage 3: All exposures are assessed as credit lmpaired when one or more events that have a detrimenta! impact on the estimated future’
cash flows of that asset have accurred. Exposures where the-amount remains due for 90 days or more are considered as to be stage 3
B556LS,

The Campany has established a.palicy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,-of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default eccurring avér the remaining:
life of the financial iInstrument. The.Company undertakes the classification of exposures within the aforesaid stages at horrower levet,

{hlCatculation of ECL:
ECL is a probability welghted credit losses {i.e. presént value of all cash shortfalls) over the expectad life of the financial instruments.

Cash shortfalis are the difference berwean the cash flows that the entity is entitled to raceive on account of contract and the cash flows
that the antity expects 1o recene

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:
Exposure-At-Default {EAD) : The Exposure at Default is the amount the Company is entitled to reraive a5 on reporting date including
repayments due for principal and interest, whether scheduted by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns os committed fadilitias,




IndaStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN; U65990MM20LEPTI271587}

Motas to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency : Indian Rupees in fakhs)

Prabability of Default {PD) : The Probability of Defaultis an estimate of the likelihood af default of the exposure over a given time horizen.
A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not. been previausly derecognised and is still in the
portfolio.

iass Given Default {LGD] : The Loss Given Defaull Is an estimate of the lass arlsing in the case where a default accurs ata given time. Itis
hased on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the fender vould expect to recelve, including from the
raalisation of any collateral. '

The ECL aliowance is applied on the financial instruments depending upon the classification of the financial instruments as per the credit
risk involved. ECL allowance is computed on the belovw mentioned basis:

12.month ECL: 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represents the ECL that results from default events on 2 financial
instrument that are posstble within the 12 months after the reporting date. 12-month ECL is applied on stage 1 assets.

Lifetime ECL: Lifetime ECL for cradit [osses expected o arise aver the life of the asset in cases aof credit impaired loans and in case of
financial instruments where there has been significant increase in credit risk since origination. tifetime ECL is the expected credit loss
resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of 2 financial instrument. Lifetime ECL is applied on stage 2 and stage 3
assets.

The Company computes the ECL allowance elther on individual basis or on colléctive basis; depending on the nature cf the underiying
portfolio of financial instruments.

Significant increase in Credit Risk

The Company monitors all financiat assets and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess
whether there has been a significant increase in credit disk since inittal recognition. If thare has been s significant increase in credit risk the
Cornpany will measure the loss allowance hased on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

In assessing whether the credit risk on 2 financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares
the risk of  default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remairing maturity of the instrument with
the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remalning- maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument
was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and gualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, based on
the Company's historical experience and expert credit assessment.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initlal recognition Is a relative measure, a given chznge, in absoluté terms, in the
Probability of Default will be more significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to-a financial instrument
with a higher PD.

As a back-stop when loan asset not being a loans becomes 30 days past due, the Company considers.that a significant increase in eredit risk
has occurred and the assat is in stage 2 of the impairment model, i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL in respect of all
retall assets.

For the purpose of counting of day past due for the assessment of significant increase in credit risk, the special dispensations to any dass of
assets in accordance with COVID19 Regulatory Package notified by the Reserve Bank of India [RBI] has been applied by the company,

Maodification and derecognition of financtaf assels

A modification of a Anancial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of s financial asset are renagotiated or
atherwise modified betwean initial recagnition and maturity of the financial asset: A medification affects the amount and/or timing' of the
contractual cash Flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction of a Aew covenants or adjustment of existing
covenants of an existing loan may coustitute a madification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows
immediately hut may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met.(e.g. 3 change to the increase in the
jritarest rate that arises when covenants ara breached). '

The Company rensgotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise coliection and minimise the risk of default. A loan
forhearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms,
there 1s a high risk of default or default has-already happened and the horrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The
‘revised termns in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan
{prificipal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of rash flows due {grincipal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to
covenants

When a financlal asset is modlfied the Comnpany assesses whether this madification results in deracognition. in accordance with-the
Company’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine if the modified
terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms the Company conslders the following:

» Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows aftet modification are no longer SPF,

= Change in currency ot change of counterparty, ' '

= The extent of change in iriterest rates, maturity, covenants.
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Hotés to the financial statements for the: year ended 31 Mfarch 2021
{Currency : tadian Rupees in lakhs)

f)

If this do not-clearly indicata a substantial madification, then:

(a}in the case where the financlal asset is'derecognised the foss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date aof deracognition to determine
the net carrying arnount of the ‘asset at that date. The difference between ‘this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new
financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or ioss.on derecognition. The new finandal asset will have a oss allowance measured
based on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated-eredit irmpaired. This appliies only in
the case where the fair value of the new loan.is recognised at a mngcant discount te its revised par amount because there remains a high
risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The Company monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by
evafuating quatitative and quantitative information, such as if the borroweris in past dug status under the new terms.

{b) Wher the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in deracognition, the Company

-determlies if the financial assel’s credit risk has ncreased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

* the remaining lifetime P estimated based on data at initiat recognition and the ariginal

contractual terms; with

° the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the maodified terms.

For financial assets modified, where modification did not resuit in derecognition, the estimate of PD refiects the Coempany's abllity to

-coltect the modified cash flows taking jnto account the Company's.previaus experience of simifar forbearance action, as well as various

hehavigural indicators. including the borrower’s payment performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains
significantly higher than what was expected at initfal recognition the loss allowance will contlnue to be measured at an amount equal to
lifettme ECL. The joss allowance on forborne iaans will generally anly be measured based on 12-month ECL when there'is evidence of the
borrower’s improved repayment tehaviour fallowing modification teading to a reversal.of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Where 3 modification does not lead to derecognition the Company caloidates the modification gain/loss compating the gross carrying
amount before and after the modification {excluding the ECL allowance}. Then the Company measures ECL for the modified asset, where:
the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original
asset,

Presentation of ECL allowance in the Balance Sheet
For financiai assets measured at-amortised cost, 10ss allewance for £CL Is-presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

{ii) Mon-financial assets

Intangible assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balanze sheet date i there is any indication of impairmant hased on intéral/external
factars. Animpatrmant loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an.individual asset exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair vatue of the asset less cost of its disposa! and value in use.

Recogrition of inceme

Revenue generated from the business transactions {other than for those items to which ind AS 108 Financial Instruments are applicabie) is
measured at fair value of the consideration to be received or receivable ty the Company. Ind AS 115 Revenue.fram contracts with
customers outlines a single comprehensive modei of accounting for revenue arlsing from contracts with custamers.

The Company recognises revanue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out In fnd 115:
Step 1:identify contract{s) with a customer

Step 2! (dentify performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance abligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

{a} Recognition of interast income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured at amertised cost. The EIR
is the rate thet exactly discounts estimated future cash receiots through the expectad life of the financtal instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrving amount of the financal asset,

The EIR for the amortised cost asset is caloulated by taking into account any discount ar premiur o0 acquisitlon, arfgination fees and
transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

if expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a
positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.
The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interast income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to tha gross carrying amount of financtal assets ather than cradit-impaired
assets. When . a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as “Stage 3", the Company recognisad the interest
intame by applying the effective inferest rate to the Aet amortised cnst of the financial asser. If the financia! status of the financial asset
improves and it no longer remains to be a credit-impaired, the Company revises the application of nterest income on such financial asset
to catculating interest income on a gross basis, '

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets niandatorily:required to be measured at FYTPL is recognisad as interest income in
the statement of profit or lnss. o :
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g}

hi.

{b} Origination fees
Origination fees, which the Company has received/recovered at time of granting of 8.loan, is considered as'a camponent for computation
of the effective rate of intarest {EIR) for the purpose of computing interest income.

() Assignment income

In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of assipnment transactions with ‘complete transfer of risks and rawards, pain arising on such
assignment transactions is recorded upfront in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the corresponding asset is derecognised from the
Balance Sheet immediately upon execution of such transactions: Further the transfer of financial assets qualifies for derecognition in its
entirety, the whole of the mterest spread at its present value {discounted over the life of the asset} is recognised on the date of
derecognitionitsel as excess intarest spread and correspondingly recogntsed as profit on derecognition of financial asset.

{d) Securitisation transactions :

in accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of securitisation transactions, the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the company continues to recogrise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
barrowing for the proceads received.

(e} Met gain/{ioss) on Fair value changes
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through' thé profit ¢r joss, held by the Cornpany tn the
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain or loss as a gain or expansa respectively,

b[mﬂariy, any realised gain ar loss on sale of financiai instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOC! s
recognised In net gain f loss on fair valie changes.

Finance Costs
TFhe Company recognises interest expense on the borrowings-as-per EIR methodology which is caiculated by considering any anciflary cnsts
incurréd and any premiurm paysble on its maturity.

Hetirament and other employee benefits

{i} Defined Contribution Plan

Provident Fund

All the employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the
employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liahifity for future Provident Fund benefits other
than its:annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an experise, when an employes rendears the related service.

{ii) Defined Benefit schemes

{a) Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees, The pian provides for lumgp sum
payments to empioyees upon death while in employmant or-on separation from employment after serving For the stipulated year

mentioned ynder ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The Company actounts for liability of future gratuity benefits based on an external

actuariat valuation on projected Lnit credit method carried out for assessing lability as at the reporting date.

Nat thiterest recognized in profit or loss is caleulated by applying the discaunt rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the
rest deﬁn:-r;{ benefit iability or asset, The actual return.on the plan assets above or telow the discount rate-is recognized as pari of re-
measurenient of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and
lossas, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amaunts inciuded in net interest on the net defined benefit liabiity and the return on plan
assets {excluding amaunts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a con‘resfzonding_ debit or credit to retained earnings threugh Other comprehensive income {'OCIY) in the period in which they occur,
Remeasurements are not recfassified to profit or loss in subseguent periods.

{b] Compensated absances

Cornpensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related services are provided for based on estimates.. Compansated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the emplayee renders the related services are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuatton is done as per prcuected unit credit methed as at the reporting date, Actuarial-galns/losses are immediately taken to Staternent
ot profit and foss docount and are not deferred.

Share based employea paymeants

Egnity séttlad share based payments

Tile stock options granted to emplovees are measured at the fair value of the aptions at the grant date. The fair value of the options is
treuted as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vasting perlod on a stralpht line basis, The amount recognised

as.expehse in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting perlod, the:

curdative discount recognised.as expense in respect of such grant is transferred to the general reserve within eguity.

Such rights have been providad ta thL'empIayees.on the equity shares of The Indostar Capltal Finance Limitad, which is holding Company.
Such contribution is crediled directly as caprtal cont‘utlon of the Company..

e

b ek
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il Leasss
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lzase, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires
an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the
arrangement canveys a right to use the assat.
.Company as a lessee
Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items ara
treated as operating ieases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on 3 straight-line
biasis over the lease term, uniess the fncrease is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised hased
on contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised a5 an expense In the period in which they itis incurred.

Critical accounting estimate and judgement

1. Determination of lease term

Ind AS 116 Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of 3 lease adjusted with any option to extend
or terminate the fease, if the uze of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes assessment on-the expected lgass tarm on
{ease by lease basis and therely assesses whether it is reasopably certain that any options to extend or ferminate

the contract witl be exercised, In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any stgnificant leasehoid improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of. the underlying to the Company's
operations taking into account the lecation of the underlying asset and the availability of the suitable aiternatives. The lease term in future
periods is reassessed to ensure that the fease term reflects the current ecopomic drcumstances.

2. Discount Rate
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lzase being evaluated or for a portiolio of leases
with similar charactaristics.

k} Foreign currency translation
Fianctianal and presentatienal currancy
The financial statements are presented in INR which is also Tunctional currency of the Campany and the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company cperates.

1) Provisions
# provision is recognised-when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is prebable that outflow of resources will
be reguired to settte the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present vatue
and are determinad based on best estimate required to settie the obligation at the balance sheet date These are reviewed at each batance
shear date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

m] Taxes
[il Current tax
Currept tax assets and |I3b]"tl&$ for the current and prior years are measired at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the
taxetion authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
reporting date’in the countries whare the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit ar foss {either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either 1n Q€I ar directly in equity..
Management parfodically evaluates pesitions taken in the tax returns with respect te situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

ti1) Deferrad tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax baszes of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reparting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temperary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits.and any unused tax
losses, Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
ternporary differences, and tha carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

The carrying amaunt-of deferred tax assets isreviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allaw afl or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessad at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has bécome peobable that future taxable profits will aliow the
defarred tax asset to be recavered.

Ueferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vaar when the asset is realised or the
liability ;s settled, hased on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted cor substantively enacted af the rénarting date,

Deferred tax relating to ftems recopnisud outside profit or loss is recognised outsida profit ar loss (elther in cther ccmpréhansive Hcome

ar i equiny): Deferred tax ivems.are recognised in correlation to the undérl\_.ring transaction either in OC! or directly in-equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off currert tax agsats agafn:t curfent tay v’;ﬂ’-‘ 'I?.’W_\%k
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sarnet bie ent:ty and the same taxation authortty.
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2.4

Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and-diluted earnings per share in accordance with ind AS 33°6n Earnings per share, Basic EPS Is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss -for ‘the year attributable to equity sharehoiders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

for tha purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or lass for the year attributable to equity sharehalders dnd the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all diutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing
the dilutive sarnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that aither reduces the earnings per share or Increases
loss per share are inciuded.

Contingent Lizbilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the eccurrence of non-
aceurrence of one or more uncertain future avents bevond the control of the Company or 2 present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that.an outfldw of resources will be required to settie the obligdtion. A contingent fiability also arises In
extremely rare cases where there is a iability that cannot be recognized because it canrot be measured refiably. The Company does nat
recognize a contingent fiability but discloses its existence in the financial statéments.

Segment reporting
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of housing finance and accordingiy there are no.separate repartable segments as per ind
AS 108 dealing with Operating segment.

Significant accounting judgements, astimates.and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the Company makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the réported amounts of income and expenses of the periad, the reported balances of assefs and liabilities and the
diszlosures refating to contingent Habilities as of the date of the finandial statements. The estimates and underlying assurnptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include usaful hives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets,
aflowance for expécted credit Josses, fair value measurement ete. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised
i1 the period in which the results are known.
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Particulars

As.at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

MNote 3
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Note 4
Bank halances other than cash and cash eguivalents
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months

Nota 5
Loans
At amortized cost

Term Loans

Total - Gross

Less: Impairment allowance
Total - Net

Secured by tangible assets
Total - Gross

tess: impajirment allowance
Totai - Net

Loans in India

{a) Public sector

{b) Others

Total - Gross

Less: Impairment allowance
Total - Net

Loans cutside India (1)
Less: lmpairment allowanée
Total - Net {b}

Total - Net {(a}+{b)

Notes :

1.01 4.10
564,28 1,655.86
565.29 1,659.96
260.28 -
260,28 ;

85,355.75 75,291.19
85,355.75 75,291.19
(1,533.36) {648.58)
£3,822.39 74,642.51
85,355.75 75,291.1%
'85,355.75 75,291.19

(1,533.36) (648.58)
83,822.39 74,642.51
85,355.75 75,291.19
85,355.75 75,291.18
{1,533.36) (648.68)
83,822,39 74,642.51
£3,822.39 74,642.51

1. The Company does not have any financing activities against collateral of gold jewellery. Hence percentage of outstanding losns granted against

collateral of gold jeweliery to total assets at 31 March 2021 is NIL {31 March 2020: Nit).

2. Detalled analysis on year end stage classification of loans and impairment allowance is disclosed in Note 30,

Note 6
Investments {at fair value through prafit or loss)
Investments i dMutual Fund.

500.02

500.02
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Particulars Asat Asat
' 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note 7

Other financial assets

Sacurity deposit 18.90 1273

Assignment receivables 2,699.77 765.65

Other receivables’ 37.11 75.05
2,755.7% 853.41

Less: ECL on assignment receivable {71.31) {5.74)
2,684.48 B847.66

Note 8

Current tax assets {net)

Advance tax (et of provision} 223.50 219.78

223.50 219.78

Note 9

Deferred tax assets

Carried forward book losses - 454,62

Provision for gratuity 10.48 6.59

Provision for leave encashment 3,43 3.33

Provision on assets hald for sale 32.80 3289

Provision for expected credit loss 366.00 79.31

tncome amortisation 53,51 38.73

Cepreciation on PPE and intangible assets: 24.33 19.33

Lease liabilities 105 -

Breterred tax liabilities

ssignment income amartisation (679.48) {130.64)

Barrowing cost amortisation {37.54) {32.43}

Lease liabilities - {27

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities} {net) {225.72) 466.07
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Note 8
Income Taxes

(a) Movement in deferred tax balances

31 March 2021

Net balance Recognised in Recognised Net deferred tax.

1 April 2020 profit or loss in QCI asset/Hability
Deferred Tax Assets
Carry. forward losses 454.62 (454.62) - -
Provision for gratuity 6.59 4.08 {6.19) 10.48
Impairment allowance on assets held for sale 32.89 (0.10) - 32.80
Provision for leave encashment 3.33 0.1¢ - 3.43
Impafrment allowance on leans 79.31 286.69 - 366.00
Income amortisation 38.79 14.73 - 53.51
Deferred tax liability
Depreciatior: on PPE and intangible assets 19.38 4.95 - 2433
Assignment income amortisation {130.64) {548.84) - {679.48)
Borrowing cost amortisation (32.43) (5.41) - {37.84)
Lease liabilities (5.77) 6.83 - 1.05
Deferred tax assets / {liabilities) 466.07 {691.60) {0.19) {225.72}
Net tax assets 466.07 {691.60) {0.19} {225.72)
{b) Movement in deferred tax balances

31 March 2020

Net balance Recognised in Recognised Net deferred tax

1April 2019 profit or loss in 0C _asset/liability
Deferred Tax Assets '
Carry forward losses - 454.62 - 454.62
Provision for gratuity - 8.63 {2:04} 6.58
Impairment allowance an assets held for sale - 32.89 - 32.89
Provision for leave encashment - 333 - 3.33
Impairment allowance on loans - 79.31 - 78.31
Income armortisation - 81.36 - 81.36
Deferred tax liability
Depreciation on #PPE and intangible assets - '19.38 - 15.38
Assignment income amortisation - {130.64) - {130.64)
Borrowing cost amortisation - {32.43) - {32.43)
Loan acquistion cost amortisation - {(42.57) - {42.57)
Lease liabilities - (5.77) - (5.77)
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) - .468.11 (2.04) 466.07
Net tax assets - 468.11 {2.04) 466.07
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totes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency : indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at . As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note 13

(ther non-financial assets.

Prepaid expenses -8.93 14.45
Advances recoverahie in ¢cash or in kind or for value to be received 216.40 70.55
{refer footnote below)

225.33 85.00

Footnote: Advances’recoverable in cash.or in kind or for value to be received includes Rs. 161.30
lakhs {Previous year Nil} as claim receilvable towards ex-gratia under GOI Scheme.

Note 14

Trade payaiies

Dues to Micrg, small and medium enterprises 032 -
Dues to Others 495,58 608.93

495,90 608.93

Mote 15

Borrowings

At amortised cost

Term loans

Term loans from banks {Refer note (a} below) 24,682.82 5,440,583
Loan from refated parties

Loan from holding company 25,291.64. 52,913.74
Total 63,984.46 58,254.33
Borrowings in India 63,934.46 58,354.33
Borrowings outside India - -
Totai 63,984.46 58,354,323
Secured borrowings 24,592.32. 5,440.59°
Unsecured borrowings 39,291.64 52,913.74
Totzl £3,984.46 58,354.33

{a) Term loan from banks {TL):

As at As at

.31 March 2021 31 March 2020¢
Redeemakle within Rate of interest Rate of interest

> 5,25% < 9.10% > 9,10% < 9.65%

Amount Amaunt

Above 60 Months 3,015.63 122,11
48-60 Months 2,170.96 244.22 {
36-48 Months 3,764.07 488.43
24-36 Months 4,219.62 1,221.08
12-24 Manths 4,965,08 1,492.43
0-12 Months 5,557.46 1,872.32
Total 24,692.82 5,440.59
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Notes to the financial statements for the yzar ended 31 March 2021

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs}

{&) Term loan from holding company :

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Redeemable within Rate of interest Rate of interest

10% 10%

Amount Amount

Abave 60 Months - -
48-60 Months 18,000.00 20,000.08
36-48 Months 20,000.00 31,000.00
24-36 Months: -
12-24:Months - -
G-12 Months 1,291.64 '1,913.74
Tatal 39,291.64 52,913.74
Note :

The term loan from hoiding company includes a optionally convertibla loan inta equity share of the company of Rs. 10,000.00 lakhs as on 31st March
2021 (Previous year Rs 10,000.00 lakhs). indoStar Capital Finance Limited has the right to convert whole or part of the outstanding of the said loan

amount into fully paid equity shares of the Company at a price which is higher of {i} the fair market value of the equity shares of the company as

determined by an independent Category {l Merchant Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of india or by an independent

Chartered Accountant, as on a date not preceding 6 months from the date on which the right to convert loan amount is exercised by IndoStar Capital

Finance Limited; or (i} face value of equity shares of the Company. The portion of the loan so coriverted shall cease to carry interest and the

“outstanding loan amount shail stand correspondingly reduced.,

Note 16

Other finandial liabilities

Book overdraft

Employee benefits payable

Others

Note 17
Provisions

Provision for employee benefits:

- Gratuity

- Compensated absences

Others ©

- Expected credit loss on undrawn loan commitments

Note 18

Mon-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable
Unarnortised lease liabilities

207,21 1.22
86.69 31.55
2,242.59 1,544.08
2,536:49 1,576.85
41.65 27.21
1361 78.94
4.86 -

60.12 56,15
£9.48 B7.92
1i3.67 20,00
202.55 107.92




tndoStar Hame Finance Private Limited

{CIN: UBS990MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the yesr ended 31 March 2021
{Currendy : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Mote 19
Eguity share capital

. Details af authorised, tssued and subserifed share capital

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 Mavch 2026
Number Amaung Number Arnount
Authorised canital
Equity shares of Rs.18/- each 20,086,00,000 20,000 20,00,00,000 20,000
Issued; subscribed and fully paid up-
Equity shares of Rs,10/- 2ach fully paid bp 20,00,00,000 20,000 20,00,00,000 20,000
Total 24,60,00,000 20,000 20,00,00,000 20,008
. Reconciiiation of number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 3t March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Number Amaunt Nurnber Amount

Shares outstanding at-the beginning of the year 20,00,00,000. 20,000 20,00,00,000 20,000
Add: Issued during the year {fully paid Rs. 10 each). - - - -
Add: Receipt of final call money durinig the year on partly faid up shares - - - -
Less: Sharés bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 20,00,00,000 20,000 20,00,00,000 20,000
Particulars of shares held i:v holding Company

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Name of sharehalder Relationship No of equity shares No of equity

Percentage : Percentage
held shares held
Indostar Capital Finance Limited Halding Company’ 20,00,08,000 100% 20,00,09,0800 100%
A3 per records of the Company, Including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding reprasants legal ownerships of shares.
. Particulars of shareholders holding more than-5% of shares held

As at'31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

fName of : hold ionshi : : .
ame of shareholder Relationship No of equity shares Percentage Na of equity Percantage
hald shares held
indoStar Capitat Finance Limited* Holding Company 20,80,00,000 100% 20,00,00,000 100%

* 1 equity share each is hald by six individuals jointly with IndoStar Capital Finance Limited. further beneiicial interest of the same is with IndoStar Capital Finance bimited.

As per racords of the Company, inchuding its register of shareholdersfmembers, the above sharehalding represents legal awnarships of shares.

. Terrasfrights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to propartionate vote on basis of his

cantributian to fully pald up share capital,

tn the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets ot the Company, after distribution of ali preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion ta the proporttonata amount of contribution made by the aquity shareholder to the total eguity share capital.




IndaStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: UB5930MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency ; Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note 20
Other equity
Statutory reserves /s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 851.51 292.48
Capital contribution from Holding Company 21191 126.95
Retained earnings 465.88 {1,773.10)

1,529.30 {1,353.67}
20.1 Other eguity movement
Statutory reserves ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Opening Balance. 292.48 853
Add ; Transferred from surplus 559.03 '283.95
Clasing Balance 851.51 292.48
Capital contribution from holding Company
Opening Balance 126,95 72.28
Mavement during the year B4.96 54,56
losing Balance 211.91 126.95
Retained earnings
Opening Balance {1,773.10) {2,914.94)
Add: Transferred from the statement of profit and foss 2,795:13 1,419.73
Less: 'Transfer to statutory reserve as per Section 29C.of the "
Mationai Housing Bank Act, 1987 (559.03) (283.95)
Add: Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations 2.88 6.06
Closing Balance 465.88 {1,773.10}

20.2 Nature and purpose of reserves

Statutory reserves ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Statutory reserves fund is required to be created by Housing Finance Company as per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank of india Act, 1987.

The Company is not allowed to use the reserve fund except with authorisation. of National Housing Bank.

Capital contribution from haolding company

Capital contribution reserveé represents the proportionate amount of fair value of options charged to the Company on account of issuance of
emplayea stack options to the employees of the Company by its Parent Company {i.e. Indostar Capital Finarice Limited] on its own shares.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents surplus/{deficit) of accumulated-earnings of the Compan_y.




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{Cin: LUE5890MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year-ended 31 March 2021
{Currency : indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 21 March 2020
Note 21
Revenue from operations
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Interest on loans
- Loan portfolio 10,835.88 8,674.16
Interest on deposits
- Deposits with banks 10.29 -
10,846.17 8,674.16
Fees and commission income
~ Fees 123.28 157.58
123.28 157.59
Net gain on fair value changes
Net gain/{luss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments §2.09 112.31
Total fair value changes 92,09 112.31
Fair value changes:
- Realised 92.05 112.31
- Unrealised 0.04 -
Total fair value changes 92.09 _112.31
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments measured at amortised
caost category
- Assignment income’ 2,156.28 623.67
2,156.28 623.67
Total 13,217.82 9,567.73
Note 22
Other Income
Miscellaneous income 137.74 146.17
Interest on income tax refund 1.19 -
188.93 146,17




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: UG5990MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency : indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year erided
31 March 2021 31 wtarch 2020
Note 23
Finance cost
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
interest expense on borrowings
Loans from banks 1,443 .47 552.14
Other borrowings {including Inter Corporate Deposits) 4,021.26 4,009,312
Interest expense on debt securities
Commercial paper 165,14 -
Other interest expense
Bank charges & gther reiated costs 28.18 51.33
5,658.05 4,612.59
‘Note 24
Impairment on financial instruments
Impairment on loans measured at amortised cost
Provision for expected credit ioss 884.68 493.64
Impairment on others
Undrawn loan commitments 4.86 -
Qthers 65.56 4.24
955.10 497.88
Note 25
Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries, other allowances and bonus 1,581.58 2,090.61.
Gratuity expenses 17.51 i8.03
Compensated-absences {12.01) 13.23
Contribution to provident and ather funds 71.28 86.78
Staff welfare expenses 7.00 13.47
Share based payment expense 84.96 5466
Employee shared service costs 58.08 88.74
1,808.40 2,365.58
Note 26
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (PPE) 123.29 132.05
Amortisation of intangible gssets 77.53 54.50
200.82 186.55
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

(CiN: UB5990MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March.2021
{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 27
Other Expenses
Rent- 29.68 33.15
Rates & taxes 10.18. 248
Printing and stationery 3.77 8.17
Travelling & conveyance 68.01 111.39
Advertisement - 68.29
Commission & brokerage 0.57 30.15
Office expenses 1:16.04 12857
Communication expenses 17.54 22.26
Payment to auditors (note below) 20.67 2423
Legal & professional charges 230.53 201.31
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment 8.98 -
Other shared service costs 399.85 339.37
Provision on employee advance 6.33 -
Impairment allowance on assets held for sale - 130,31
917.15 1,099.68
Payment to auditor includes:
a} Statutory Audit {refer footnote} 10.71 8.72
b} Tax Audit 1.50 1.36
) Certifications 6.75 13.08
d} Other Services 1.71 1.07
Total 20.67 24.23
Footnote:

Including payment to erstwhile auditors Rs. 2.21 lakhs.




todaStar Home Financa Private Limited
{CIM: ASSSOMHAMLEPTC271587)

Notes to the fihancial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2021

[Currengy : indtan Aupees in lakhs)

Note 28
Income taxes

Tax expense
{a} Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current tax.expense
Current year 3I80.50 -
380.50 -
Deferred tax expense
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences ‘691.60 {468.11}
691,60 {468.11}
Tax expense far the year 1,072.10 i (468:11)
[b} Amuounts recognised in other comprehensiva income
For the year ended For the year ended
Tax {expe:
Before tax Je::ﬁ:se] Net of tax Befare tax  Tax'{expense) benefit Net of tax
ttems that will not-be reclassiflied to profit or loss
Pemeasurements of the defined benefit liahility 3.07 {215} 288 8.12 {2.04} 5.06
{asset]
1,07 {0.19) 2.88 8,10 {2.04} .06
(] Reconciliation of effective tax rate
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before tax 3,867.23 951.62
Statutery income tax rate 25,17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expense '973.30 239,50
Tax effect of:

Carried forward tax ldsses of previous years - [F07.61)

Others 98.79 -
Total tax expense 1,072.09 {468.11)

Current tax 38050 -
Deferred tax G9L.60 {468.11)
1,072.10 {468.11)




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: UB5990MH2016PTC271587)
‘Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency ; indian Rupees in lakhs}

Note 29
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS calcufated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding ddring the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to.equity holders (after adjusting profit impact of ditutive
potential equity shares, if any) by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and the
weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity
shares,

For the Yesr For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2029

i. Profit attributable to equity holders {A)

Profit attributable te equity holders for hasic and diluted EPS 2,795.13 1,418.73
il. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B} 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
iii. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS {C) 20,00,00,000 20,00,00.000
iv. Basic earnings per share (Rs.} 1.40 0.71
v. Diluted earnings per share (Rs.} 1.40 0.71




IndasStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: UBS930MH2O16PTC271587)

Notes o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency : indian Rupess in lakhs)

Mate 30
Financial instrements — Fair valyes and Risk management

A, Accounting classTfication and falrvalues

Fair vaiue is the price thatwould be received to sell an assel or pald to transfer a [1abllty i an qrderly transaction in the principal {or most advartageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditions , regardless of whether that price is directly observabls of estimated ustng 2 valuation technique,

The managemeant has assessed that the _carr_ving amounts of cash and cash equivalents, loans carried 3t amaortised cast, ather financial assats, wade payables; barrowings, bank/book overdrafts and other current
liablites are a reasapable approvimation to their fair value.

. Risk Management Framewark:
Company’s risk management framework is based on

{a} Clear understanding and Mdentlfication of variaus risks

b} Disciplined rsk assessment by evaluating the probability and impact of each risk _

{c} Measurement and monlboring of risks by astablishing key risk indlcators with threshalds for all critical risks and
). Adequate review mechanbim to monitar and contral risks,

Cempany's Hsk management division warks as 2 value centre by constantly engaging with the business previding reparts based on key analysis and Insfehits. Tha key risks faced by the company are credit risk,

figuidity risk, Interest rate fisk, operativnal risk, reputational and regulatory Flsk, which are braadly classified as credit risk, market risk snd operationat risk, The company has 2 well established risk reparting and
monitaring framework. The company identifies and menftors risks periedically. This pracess enables the company to raassess the all critical risks i a changing envirsoment that need to be focused an.

€. flisk gavernanca structuro:

Company’s risk’ govgrnénce structure operates with a robust Beard and Risk Management Committge {'RMC'} with a clearly kd dewn charter and roles and yespansibilities. The-Board oversees-the rlsk’

management process Ind menltors the risk profile of the company directly as well as through & Scard constituted Risk Management: Committes. The Ce ftree reviews the risk managemeant pelicy,
impl tatian of nsk arment f ok, Itering of critical ris]fs, and review of various other inltatlves. The Hsk managernent pollclas are establishad 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Cornpany, to set appropriste limits and controls and ta litor risks and adh to imits. The RAMC reviews the risk management policies regulariy to reflect the changes Tn market litions and Company's
activities.

The pudit Committee oversees Hiow management monftars compllance with risk management pniicies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of risk manag nt fi k in relation to the risk faced by
the Campany,

The: rigk 5 division has blished a prehensive risk B 1t frz ark. aceoss the business and provides appropriate reports on rsk exposures and anafysis in its puesiit of ereating

‘swarenass across the Campany about Fisk management.

. Fair vaioe hierarctiy

Ind A5 107, ‘Financial tnstrument - Mselosure’ pegulres classificatlon of the valuatio_ﬁ method of_fjnanc[a'l Instrumants measured at fairvalug in the Balance Sheet, using 2 three level fafeavalue-hinrarchy {vhich
retlects the significance af inputs used in the messutements;, The hisrarchy gives the i\Tghest pricrity to unﬁdjusted quoted prlces I active markeis for identical assets or liabilittes (Level 1 measurernents) and
fgwest prighity to yn-observable inguts {Lavel 3 measurements). The three [evels of the fair-value-higrarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below:

Leve] 1: Eevel T ierarchy includes financiat instruments measured using quated prices.

Leval.2: The fair vatue of financial instruments that are not braded in an active market |3 determined.using valuation technigues which masimise the v of ahservable market wata apd place limited relidace en
entity spevific estimates., f all sigrificant inputs required to fair value an instrument are sbservalile, the instrument is Included in tevet 2.

Level 3: if ane or more of the-sigalfleant inputs Is not based on obiservable market data, the Instrument s incladed in fevel 3.

‘the foliowing table shaws the canylng azﬁounls and fair waluas of financiat assets including their levels In tha fair valua hlararchy:

Ac at 31 March 2021
Camying amount . Fabr vajue
4 3.
Parttoutars Fairvalue thFafr \:k:; tevel 1~ Quoted Level 2- Q:-e:[;:ant
through profit raug. N .e r Amertised Cost Total price in active Slgaificant g Totat
- eqmpr . unchscrsable
and fees markets obiservable Inputs .
incame- inputs

investments covered under Ind AS 109

{a] tnvestments 500482 - - 500.02 S00.02 - - S0H.82
tisf Loans - - 85,522,538 83,822.38 - - 83,822.33 83,842.59
Tertal 500.02 - BY,822.39 84,322.41 50062 - 83;822,39 84222.&'

As at 31 March 2020
Carrying amount Falr value
i . 1nvel 3-
farticulars Fair value thFa:: ‘:h:: or ievel 1- Quoted Level 2- 5 c:i{:lc'an "
through prafit o en @ Amortisad Cast Total price In aciive significant Bnile Total
camprehensive - unobservable
and {oss markets abservable Inputs
Income Inputs

Investments covered under Ind AS 109
“{a) fovestments - - -
(b} Loans - - -74,64.50 74,642 51 - - 74,642,51 74,642.51

Total - - 74,642 .51 ?4!642.51 - - FLEALS1 ?4;542.51




ndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{Cing: UﬁSSQGMH?OlGPTCZ?lS&?}

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 32 March 2021
{Curcency : Indian Rupees in lakhs}

£. Liguidiry eisk

Liquitity 15 the Company’s capacity to fund increase’in assets and meet both the expe:téd wnd uherpected obligations without Tneurring unacceptable Insses, Liuidity risk is the inability to meet such obifgations
as they become due without adversely affecting the company's fi ial conditi The Asset Lizhility Manzgement Policy of the Company stlpulates a broad framework for Liguldity risk management ta ensure
that.the Cormpany can meet its tiquidlty obligations, The Asset Dability A vt ittee {"ALCO'Y itors camposition, characteristics and diversification of funding sources to ensure there i3 na over
relkanes on singhy soures of funding. The Company tracks the. cash flow misinarches for measering and managing net funding requirement throuth Maturity Ladder approach and reviews short-term {iguidity
profiles based on business projections and other commitments for planning purposes thraugh Dynamic Liguidity analysis. The ALOD also reviews'the individual mismatch in sach time bucket and cumulative

_mismaleh antf ensures the burket wise limits are not generally braached,

The Company maintains & partfolio of highly marketable and diversa assets that are assumed to be easily ﬁqu]da(ed Tty the event af an unforeseen interruption in cash flow. The liquidity position of the company
ig assessed under a variety of scenarios giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market [n general and fisk speaifics to the Company. Basis the liquidity position assessed undér various stress
scenarios; the Campany reviews the following to effectively hafidle any liquldlty crisis;

+  Adequacy of conlingency fun_di:ig plan in terms of Heplh of variaus funding sources, time to activate, cost of botrowing, erc
+ Availability of uner bered eligible assets

Maturity profile of undiscounted cash flows far financeial 3abllites as or balance sheet date have been provided below:

As'an 31 March 2021

Particulars Less thjn 3 3 to 1% months 1ta 5 years Gwet 5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
T(ade payables 495,30 - - - 495,90
Borrowings (other than deht securities} 3,878.78 357052 53.119.74 3,015,67 63,984,456
Other financial [fabilitlas 2,536.49 - - - 2,536.4%
Total §511.17 3,970.32 53,119 M 3,015.62 67,0146.85
As on 31 March 2020
Less thar 3
Partirulars . 3 to 12 months 1to S years Quer 5 years Torai
months
Financizl Liabilities
Trade payabies 608.33 - - - 608.93
Borrowings [other than debt securities) 407.03. 261833 55,206.87 12211 58.354.33
Uther financial liabllities 1,576,385 - - - 1,576.85
Total 2,552.81 2,618.33 55.206.47 i2211 £0,540.11

,M“.,.N
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Umitad

{€IN: YB5990MH 2016PTC271582)

Moles to the financial statements for the year ended 21 March 2021
{Currency ;. Indsan Rupees inlakhsj

Mate 30
Fiiancial {nstroments - Falz valves and Risk management (continued)

F.Credit visk

Credit tisk arses suhen a barrower is unabie to ment his cantractual ahliganons ta-the lendar. The effective management of credit risk requires the estabfishment of approgriate crédit sk policies and ‘processes. The
Company has h and well defined cradit pellcies across various busi prod and’ , which credlit app | process for all busi zlong with guidelines for mitigating the risks
assoclated with them. The 2p process includes detailed risk of the b . physi venrcatmns and tield visits. The company has a robust post sanction manitoring process to identify partiolic-wise
credit risk trends and early warning signals. This enehbles it to impl ¥ thanges to the credit policy, whenever the need arises to prevent zny further slippage In the credit quality.

Slenificant Increase i crodt risk

Tha credit risk an a financial asset of the Company sre assumed to have hcreased siznificantly sinee indtial recagnition wheh contractyal payments are more than 30 days past due, The [oans where the renegotiated terms
are not.substaetially diffirent and involve rapayment terms ta be-extended Lhciuding Intarest or the EME amount read)usted over the tenure are class|fiad as Stage 7. Additionally, accounts ideatified. and revi i by-tha
cradit committee for labelling as breaching pre-defined crltical cradit rlsk paramef.ers will also be classified as Stage 2. Accnrdjng!y, the financial assats thali be cladsified as Stage 2, baged an th_e ‘quantitative a5 wall as
yualititive factars.

Write off. policy
Financial assets we written off either partiaily or in their entiraty enly when the Company has stopp ing the recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impeirment on financial instrament in statement of
prefit and [oss.

‘Restructured financlal assets

Aldoan whers rep. I terms ara gotiatad on substantially different terms-as compan!d to the original cantracted terms due to significant increase in credit risk of the borrower are classified as stage 2; Such vans
tontlnue ta bedn stage 2 Gntll they exhiblt regular paviment of renegotiated principal and lntarast over 3 minimum chservation perlod tvplcallv 12 months-past repegatiation, and there are no other indicatars of
impai Having satisfied the canditions of timely pay : t over the obsenation period these loans could ke transferred tostage 1 and & fresh assessmel_n‘af the risk of defauit is done.

Querview of the Expectad Credit Loss princfples
The Tompary racords afl for sup { credit lasses bor alf loans, debt financial assats not hald at FVTPL, undrawn ican it ts {) 1w as i ial I s,
Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans Into Stage 1, Stege 2 and Swege 3, a5 described below:

Stage 1: When laans are first recognlsed, the Company récognises an aliowance based an 12mECL, Stage 1 laans also include facilitles where the tredit risk has improved, and the ioan has been reclassitied from Staga 2/
Stagé %, Loans that are standavd with days past due [BPD) not exceading 30 days as on reparting period are categarized under Stage I

Stage 2: When a loan has shown 2 significant increase fn eredit risk since origination, the Company records an allawance for the LTECL, Stage 2 joans also include facillties, where the credit risk has Empmu’ed,'and the laan
ivzs been rgdassiﬁed from Stage 3. Loans that are standard with days past due {DPO) in the renge of 31-90 dayt 45 on reporting period are categorized under Stage 2,

Stage 3: Loans considered creditimpairad and crossed 50 DPD'as on reporting pe ried, The company recerds an allawance for the TTECL

Defintan of defaull
A default an a flnancial asset is when the counterparty falis to make the contractual payments within 20 days of when they falt due, Accordingly, the ([Rancial assnts shall be classifiad ag Stage 3, if on the reporting date, It
has baen 90 days past dua, Nan-payment an another obligation of the same customer is also considered as a Stage 3.

The cafcufation of ECL

The Company caleulates ECLta measure the expected cash shortfalls. discounted af an approximation ta the EIR, A cash shartfall is the difference bacween the cash flows that are-due to an entity in aceordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to raceive.

The key alements of the ECL are summarised heiow:

Pl The pfohah[litv of gefault {'PD ) is an estimate of the Lhelihond of default aver a given time horiton. A default may only happen at a certain tine @ser the assessed period, if the facility has nov been previously
derecopnised and is il in the portfolic. ) :

£AD: Tha éxnnsure at Default is the amount the Company is entitled to recelvs as on taparting date including repavreent; due for principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or ptherwise, expected drawdown:
an committed Rcilitias,

LGD. LGD-is the magnitude of the Hkely loss if there it a default, The company-estimates 160 parameters based an the history of recovery rates aga‘nst defaulted counterparties, The LG5 models censider the cash fiow
received, assets received in liew of settlemant of loan and ¢ ilable far sub recavery that is integral to the financial asset,
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Notes to the finzucial staternents for the year anded 31 March 2021
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Mate 30
Financiatinstruments — Fair valves and Risk management (continuad)

Farward teoking intormatian

‘The camipany employ: statfstical madels to snalyse the data caltected and i of the remainil lifstime PD of axpnsures and how these are expetted ta change.as a result of the passage of time. Such
statistical models are selectad considering the availability of Information related to the prabability of default for each produect. This analysis inchudes the dentification and calibration of retationships batween changes
it GNPA a5 proxy for defauit rates and ch In kay macr ic fackars, Key economic indicaters considered for forward loaking includes:

* GO growth

+ WPE [\Wholesate price index}

Farthe purpese of determination of impact.of forward fneking nformation, the campany applies macra ecanomic (ME) variables as stated above to wach product and assess the trend of the histarical probability of defaults,
as compared to the forecdsted probability of default. Based on the directional trend of qutput, management applies an overlay Ifre::_uired', Overtime, new ME variable may emerge to have a better correlation and may
reptace ME beaing used now.

The toble below shows the credlt guality and the maxfmum exposure La eredit risk based on the Company's Internal ¢redit ratng systens and yearend skage. classification. The amaunts presentad are gross of
impzirment allowances.

-31 March 2021,
Particulars
Stagn 1l Stage 2 Stage 3 Tetal
Financial agsets measured at amartised cost
LFans B3,587.30 1321755 155081 . £5,355.75
Total 80558?.30 3,212.55 155091 85,355,75
Farticulare 31 March 2020
Stage Stege 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
boans 14,325.74 331.46 633,99 7529113
Total 74,325.74 33145 533.99 75,291.19
A analysis of chiznges In the geoss carrying amount and the corresponding ECE all g5 in relation te loans and advances ks, as follows:
2020-21 2018-20
Partleulars .
Stage 3 Stage 2 . Stape 3 Total Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3 Toraf
&ross carrying ameunt opening balance T4,325.74 33148 533.99 75,251 52,760.17 128.41 7l42 52,951.60
hiev: assety originated ar purchased 2671871 75.4% 12743 26,921 3341837 14.17 - 23,432.50
Assets derecognised or repald {excluding write offs) {16,616.82) -{156.29} (8308} {16,857} {11, 075.806}; {12.53} [14.42) 111,102.7%;
Vransfers to stage 1 3412 134.12) - - - - . -
Fransfers to stage 2 {3,084.34) 3,124.90 {40.56] - (293.32). 283,32 -
‘Transfers to stage 3 {F90.11) {123.29) 91341 - {484 08} l?l,glj s¥san
Amaunts written off - - - - -
Bross casrying ameunt closing balance BO587.30 3,217.55 1,550.51 85,355.75 F4,325.74 331.46 £33.95 . 75,292.19
Reconciilation of ECE balance is glven balow:
. 2020-21 015-20
Partlzilaes .
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Taotat
ECL ailowance - epaning hafance- 517.81 156 11551 E4B.E8 137 44 0.78 7282 A58 0
Hraw astels originated of purchased 37979 415,27 - 795,06 33z a5 [LEL - 34325
Aszets 4 ar repaid {excluding wiite offsh {48.17) {0.65) 9,21} (5843} [27.59) 16.03) (268 130.51)
isanges to imodels and inpuks used for ECL caleulations - - - {580 {5,580
Transfers 10 stage 1 0.08 ReXek)] - - - - - -
Transfers to stagn 2 {18.67) 26,78 [8.11j - [1.73] 073 - -
Transfers to stage 3 [5.63) [1.88] 051 - {1.21; i0.28} 544 -
Irapact o year end ;CL on exposures transferred (22881 116,57 27799 1478 7418 {0.29) 11373 18659
between stages during the year - - .
ECL allowance - closing balance 595.31 587.36 350.69 1,533.36 51".2%'_ 138 139.51 6868

G. Risk tManagament amidst COVIO-19 :

Eztlmation uncertzinty relating to COVID-19 global health pandemie;

it ussessing the !ecmr-rfflb]llw of loans, receivables amd vestments, the Company has conshdered lnternal and axtamal seurces of infotmation, eronomic farecasts and iudestry refarts upta the date of approvai af diese fienedaf nesuits, The
Cienpaeyy hios peelrmed stress esting on the assimptions used and based on cursent inslicatars of future econimic-conditions, the Company expects 1o recover W Catrylan, Amount of 1hese aseats, The Company has developed estinrates and
agplivd management averlays far the purpose ol determiriation of the provisian for impairment of fnuneial sssets. : ’ ’

Thes full extent of Impact ‘ot the pandemic (WVave 2 on the Company's aperations and financial pari v (hnctuding i Il for iEnshoak asset] wiii deaetd un futues I Ticiuding 9oy | and laton,
measures and the Cempany's sesponses theretn, whicl sre highly untertain at this time, .

Furibwr, in view of the malters mentianed above, the Company ix reguletly azsessing and menitoning the jmpact of the Hovel Coranasirys [£0VID-19} pandemic on jts quu‘dlt"f ane ability to repay its ohElgarions 25 and when they are due; Baaed on
th [tragoing and necessary stress bests. idering vanious 3 belizvas tfiat the Sompany will be able to pay its abligations as and when these becoine Jue in the faraseaanls {Iitarn,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency : indian Rupees in lakhs)

Mote 30
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)

H. Market risk

Market Risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial instrument as a result'of changes.in market variables such as interest
rates, exchange rates and other asset prices. The Company’s exposure to market risk is a function of asset liability management and- interest rate
sensitivity assessment. The company is exposed to interest rate risk and liquidity risk, if the same is not managed properly. The company continuously
monitors these risks and manages them through appropriate risk limits. The Asset tiability Management Committee ['ALCC'} reviaws market related
trends and risks and adopts various strategies related to assets and liabilities, in line with the Company’s risk management framework.

1. Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of lass resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external events. The operational
risks of the Company are managed threugh comprehensive interal controt systams and procedures. Failure of managing operational risk might lead tc
legal / regulatory Implications due to non-compliance and lead to financial loss due to control faflures. While-it is not practical to eliminate all the
operational risk, the Company has put in place adequate contral framework by way of segregation of duties, well defined process, staff fraining, maker
and checker process, authorisation and clear reporting structure. The effectivenass of control framework is assessed by internal audit on-a periodic
basis.

To manage fraud risk effectively, the Company has Independent Risk Containment Unit {"RCU'} which is responsible for implementing fraud tisk
ranagement framework and ensure complianca. The RCU undertakes various activities such as pre-sanction loan applicant verification, pre-sanction
and post disbursament documents verification, vendor verification, etc to prevent and manage frauds.
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Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 Marech 2021
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Note 30
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued}

J. Capital Disclosure:

The Company maintains adequate capital to cover risks inherent.in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements
of our regulator, National Housing Board (NHB). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other
measures, the regulations issued by NHB/RBI.

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposad capital requirements over the reported period.

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management palicy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to-suppert its business and to
maximise shareholder valie:

The Comipany maintains its capital structure in line with economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Tier | capital ratio 48.0% 45.6%
Tier |l capital ratio 1.2% 12%
Total capital adequacy ratio 49.2% 46.8%

8% Cusmeney
FARSREHIE )
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Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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Note 31
Related Party disclosures, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 {Ind AS 24) are given helow:

a) Relationships
Ultimate Holding Company
Broakfield Asset Management Inc. {from-9.July 2020)

Holding Company _
BCP V Multiple Holdings Pte. Ltd. (from 9 July 2020)
IdoStar Capital Finance Limited

Fellow Subsidiary
indoStar Asset Advisory Private timited

Names of other related parties with whom the Company kad transactions during the.year:
Key Managerial Personnel

Shreejit Menon -Whole Time Director

b} Transactions with Key Management Personnel :

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1) Shert-term employee benefits 74.17 73.17
2] Reimbirsement of expenses 6.19 116

Compensation of the Company’s key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post-

employment defined henefit plan.

c) Transactions other than those with key management personnel :

Particulars Holding Company
1} Reimbursement of expenses 2021 495.16
2020 517.84
23 Interest on'lqan from holding company 2021 4,021.26
2020 4,009.12
3} Loan taken from holding company {net} 2021 13,000.00
2020 17,500.00

d) The related party halances outstanding at year end are as follows:

Particulars Holding Company

Key Management
Personnel

1} Reimbursernant of expensas 2021 493,17
2020 456.13

2} Loan from holding company 2021 39,291.64
{including accrued interest) 2020 52,913.74
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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Note 32

Set out below is the disaggregation of the revenue fram contracts with customers

Particulars

For the'year ended.  For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Type of Services or service
Fees 123.28 157.59
Total revenus from contracts with customers 123.28 157.59
Geographical markets’

India 123.28 157.59
Qutside India - o
Total revenue from cantracts with customers 123.28 157.59

Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 123.28 157.58
Services transferred over time - -
Total revenue fram contracts with customers 123.28 157.59

MNote 33
Contingent liabilities and Commitments

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Contingent lizbilities:
Capital commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account

Other commitments.
Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed

Note 24
Disclasures as required by ind AS 116 ‘Leases’

{A) Lease liability movement

3.870.15 3,020.68

Particulars

As at 21 March 2021 As ot 31 March 2020

Opening Balance/Trarisition Adjustment
Add : Additions during the year

Add 1 Interast on lease liability

Less : Lease rental payments

(B} Future lease cashflow for all leased assets

20.00 42.94
116,67 -
4.66 340
{28.27) (26.04)
113.06 20.00

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Not {ater than one year
Later than ane year but not later than five yéars
Later than five years

{C) Marurity anaiysis of lease liahility

24.8% 19.48
96.43 1.42
33.64 -
154.96 20.90

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021 As 3t 31 March 2020

Lease liability ]
tess than 12 months
Moie than 1.2 months

14.56 18.60
98.51 1.40

113.0% : 20.00
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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Note 35

Dues to Micro, Smal!l and Medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The foliowing disclosure is made as per the reguirement under The Micre Small and Mediumn Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the
"MSMED Act’) on the basis of confirmations sought from suppliers en registration with the specified authorities under MSMED :

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
a. Principat and interest amount remaining unpaid 0.32 -
h. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid - .
¢. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micio, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day

d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been - -
paid but beyond the appointed day during-the period} but without adding interest specified:

under the Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises. Act,2006)

e, Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
f. Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when - -
the interest duas as above are actuzlly paid to the small enterprises

The aforementioned-is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquities with supnpliers with regard to appiicability under
the said Act. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
Mo interest has been paid/is payable by the Company during the year to the suppliers registered under this Act.

Note 36
Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:

The Company has unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible fora
gratuity on separation at 15 days basic salary {last drawn salary) for each campleted year of service.

Based on ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits’ notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended fram time to time, the following disclosures have been made as required by the standard:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

A. Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of the abligation as at the end of the year 41.65 27.21
Fair value of plan assats as at the end of the year - -
Net asset / (liability) to be recognized in the balance sheet 41.65 27.21

B. Change in projected benefit abligation

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Projected henefit of cbligation at the beginring of the year 27.21 17.22
Current service cost. 15.85 16.78
interest cost 1.86 1.31
Actuarial {gain} { loss on abligation : {3.07) {8.10)
Projected benafit.obligation at the end af the 41.55% 27.21
year

€. Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year - -
Expected réturn on plan assets
Actuarial gain/{loss)

Senefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
{CIN; U65990MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs})

D. Amaunt recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 15.65 16.78.
Net interest cost 1.86 1.31
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 17.51 18.09

E. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income.
Actuarial (gains) / loss

- change in financial assumption 2.16 2.18
- change in demographic assumption - {¢.01)
- experience variation : (5.23) {10.28)
Expenses recagnised in other comprehensive income {3.07) {8.10}
F. Assumptions used As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Discount rate 6.35% 5.85%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%

10% at younger ages  10% atf younger ages
withdrawal rates reducing to 6% at reducing to 6% af

older ages older ages

G. Sensitivity analysis.
Reasonably possible changes at the reparting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,
would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

. As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase: Decrease
Discount rate {0.5% movement]) 39.49 44.00 25,72 28.82
Salary growth rate {0.5% movement) 43.99 34.58 28.74 25.78
withdrawal rate (10% movement]) 41,03 42,27 26.65 27.76

H. Other information :
1. The expected contribution for the next year is Rs. 8,553/~
2. The average outstanding term of the obligations as at valuation date is 10.28 years.
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Note 37 - Maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities

Financial statements of the Company are disclosed in the format or arder of iguidity. An analysis of fts assets and [iabilities accarding to thelr timing of recoverability and
setthement has been presented below in 2 tabulated format.

Ason'31 March 2021 As on 3L March 2020
Particulars Nota Withln 12 More than 12 Within 12 Moere than 12
| ) Totai . Total
months months menths -
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash-and cash' equivalents 3 565.29 - 565,29 L658.80 - 1,659.96
Bank balances ather than cash and cash. 4 260.28 - 260.28 - ] -
equivalents
Loans 5 10,340.95 73,481.44 83,822.39 B,774.91 65,867.60 74,642.51.
investments & 500,02 - 500.02 - - -
Other financial asseis 7 37.11 2.647.37 2,684.48 B2.76 76490 847.66
Kon-fipancial assets
Currenf tax assets (net} 8 - 223.50 223.50 - 213,78 219.78
Daferred tax assets (net} El - - - . 466.07 466.07.
Property, plant and equipment 10 - 17177 1777 - 17793 17793
Azsets held for sale 11 477.49 - 437.49 117276 - 117276
Intangibile assets : 12 - 103.99 103,99 - 78.84. 78.84
Other non-financial assets 13 225.33 - 225,33 £5.00 - .85.00
TOTAL ASSETS 12,406.47 76,628.07 89,034.54 11,775.32 &7,575.12 79,350.51
Ason 31 March 2021 As on 31 March 2020
Particulars Note Within 312 hore than 22 Within 12 More than 12
Totzl . Total
manths months months menths
LTABILITIES
Financial liabilitias
Trade payables 14 4_95,90 - 485.90 504,93 - 603_.93
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 15 7.849.10 .56,135.36 63,984.46 302585 55,328.97 58,354.33
Other finangal liabilities 16 2,536:4% - ' 2,536.49 1.576.85 - 1,576.85
Mon-financial liabilitias
Pravisions 17 18.55 41,57 806.12 2,78 53.37 56.15
Deferred Tax Llability 9 22572 22572 -
Other nan-financial liabiiities 18 104.04. 98.51 262,55 8932 1860 107.92
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,004.08 55,501.16 67,505.24 5,403.23 55,400.84 60,704.18

‘Note: Clasification of assets and ahilities under the different maturity buckets is based on certain estimates and assumptions as used by the company; which has been relied
upon by the auditors.

Note 38 - Disclasure pursiant to Ind AS 108 "Gperating Seginents'
The Company operates mainly in business segment of housing finance: Further all activities are carried gut in India. As such there are no reportable segments as per IND AS
108 on Operating Segments.

£ e L
O
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Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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Note 39 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank} Directions, 2021

1. Capital

fFarticulars

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 Maych 2020

(i1 CRAR [26)

{i) CRAR — Tier | Capital {%}

tiii) CRAR =~ Tier |l Capital {%}

tiv) Amount of subardinated dabt raised as Tier- 1l Capital
{v) Amount raised by jssue of Perpetual Débt instruments

49.2%
48.0%
1.2%

46.8%
45.6%
1.2%

§l. Reserve Fund ufs 29C of HHBE Act, 1987

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020°

Balance at the beginning of the year

a} Statutary Reserve ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Att, 1987
b} Amaunt of special reserve ufs 36{1}{viiilof Income Tax Act, 1961 taken
inta-account for the purpases of Statutary Resarve under Section 29C of

the NHB Act, 1987
¢} Total

Addition f Appropristion / Withdrawal during the year

Add:

aj Amount transferred ufs 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
b} Amount of spacial reserve ufs 36{1){vili} of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken
inta account for the purposes of Statutory Resarve under Section 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987 ’

Lass:

a} Amount apprapriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB
Ack, 1987

L), Amaunt witharawn from the $pecial Resarve u/s 36(1}{viii) of incame
Tax Act, 1961 taken into account which has been taken Inta account for
the purgpose of pravision /s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Bajance at the end of the year

aj Statutory Reserve ufs 19C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

b} Amount of special reserve ufs 36{1){vilijaf Income Tax Act, 1961 taken
inta account for the purposes of Statutary Recerve under Section 29C of
tlte MHB Act, 1987

c} Total

Itl. Investments

292,48

853

292.48

853

559.03

B851.51

283.95

292 48

85151

282.48

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

£s 5t 31 8arch 2020

1. value of Investments

{i} Gross value of Investments
{a) In India

ik} Qutside India

{if} Provisions for Depraciation
ialin India

{b Qutside India

{ifit et value of investments
{a} In India

{h} Gutside india

2. Movemert of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
{t] Opening balance
{it] Add: Pravisicns made during the year

{if} Less: Write-off / Wrivten-bank of excess provislons during the year
{iv} Clesing balance -

I, Derivatives _
1. Forward Rate Agreement {FRA} / Interest Rate Swap {IRS}

500.02

Particulars

At at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2020

{i) The notional principal of swap agraaments

{it] Losses which would be incurrad it counterparties faned to fulfil their
ohitgations under the agreements

{itiy Collateral required by the HFC upon entering inta swaps

{iv} Concentration of credit risk arising fram the swaps

{v} The fair value of the swap book
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Note 35 - Disciosure as required by Master Directian — Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Housing Finance Campany {Reserve Bank} Directions, 2021

2. Exchange Traded Interest Rate {IR) Darivative

Farticulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
{1} Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives
undertaken during the year - -
{ii! Mational principal amaunt of exchange traded IR derivatives

outstanding as on 31st hMarch 2018 - -
{iii} Notional principal ameunt of exchange traded IR derivatives

outstanding and not "highly effective” - -
{iv] Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding

and not."highly effective” - -

3. Disciosures on Risk Exposure’in Dervatives

Particulars -fs at 31 March. 2421 As at 31 March 2020

A, Qualitative Disclosure
HFCs shall describa thalr risk management policies pertaining to

derivatives with particular refarence to tha extent to which derivatives
are ised, the assoclated risks and business purposes served. The

discuszion shall also inciude:
a) the structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives

trading, . .
b) the scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting and risk

rnitoring systems, - _
£} polcies for Nedging and / or NILEATINE NSk anad strategies and

processes for monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges /
mitigants, and . - -

¢} accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge transactions;
recognition of income, premiums and discounts; valuation of outstanding
contracts; provisioning, collateral and cradit risk mitigation. - -

Quantitative Cisclosure

As on-31 March 2021 As on 31 March 2020
Particulars Currency Interest Rate Cuirrency Interest Rate
Defivatives Darivatives Desivatives Darivatives

{i} Darivatives {Natienal Pringipal Ainourit) - - - -
{ii) Marked to Market Positlons
{a) Assars {+] - - - B
{b} Liability {-}. - - - -
{iii} Cre_dit Exposure - - - -
{iv} Unhadged Exposures’ - - - -
V. Securitisation
1. Details of Securzitisation

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

1. No of SPVs sponsored by the HFC far seruritisation transactions - -

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per hooks of the SPVs sponsored - -
3. Total amount of exposuras retained by the HFC towards the MRR as

on the date of balance sheet

{1} Gff-balance sheet exposures towards Cradit Enhancements - -
{H} On-balance sheet exposures towards Cradit Enhancements - -
Amount of axposures o securitisation transactions - -
4. pthar than MRR

{1} Dif-balance sheat expasures towards Craddit Enhancemeants

a) Expasure (D owr securitizations - -
b) Exposure to third party securitisations u -
{11 On-balance sheet exposuras toveards Credit Enhancements

a} Exposure 1o own securitisations - -
] Exposure to third party securitjsatians . - -

2. Details of Financia® Assets seld-to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

Particulars’ As at 31 March 2021 As at.31 March 2020
{i} Na. of accounts - -
{ii} Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to 5C/ RC - -
{iif) Aggregate consideration ' - -
{iv] Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred
i eardier years '
{v) Aggragate gain / loss aver net book value - -
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Note 3% - Disclosure as required by Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2021
3. Betsils of Assignment transactions

Particulars JAs at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
{i} No. of accaunts 1,134 1,440
(i} Aggregate value [net of provisions) of accounts assigned 9,182.61 7,446,891
{iii} Aggregate consideratlon 9,192.61 7,446.91

tiv} Additional consideration realizéd in respect of accounts transferrad - -
in earliar yaars

{v) Aggregate gain { loss over net book value - -

4, Details of nan-performing financial assets purchased / sold

. Farticutars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:

{a} Mumber of accounts purchased during the year - -
{b) Aggregate outstanding - B

{aj Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year- . .
{b} Aggregate outstanding - R

8. Details of Non-performing Financiai Assets sold:

1. Ma. of accounts sold - -
2, Ageregate outstanding - -
3. A’ggfegate ronsideration received - -
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IndgStar. Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: UB5990MHZ016PTC271587)

Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency - Indian Rupees in lakhs)

|, Exposure

1. Exposure to Rea! Fstate Sectar
Category As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

al Direct Exposure.
li} Residenttal Mortgages - Lending fully secured by martgages an
residential proparty thatis or will he oreupied by the borrower or
that is rented. Individual housing loans up 10 15 lakhs Rs: 54,535.35
lakhs, (Previous year Rs, 54,101,52 iakhs}

$3,481.20 74,635.09

{il] Commercial Real Estate - Lending secured by mortgages on

commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multi--

purpose commerdial premises, multi-family residential buildings,

multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehousa 157.21 182.34
space, hotels, fand acquisition, development and construction,

etc.). Exposure would also inclide nan-fund based {NFB} limits;

{iif} Investmants in Mortgage Backed Securities {MBS) and other
securitised exposures -
a} Residential - -
b} Commercial Reat Estate -
bj Indirect Exposure Fund based and non-fund based exposures an
Natinnal Housing Bank {NHE) and Housing Finance Camparies {HFCs}

2. Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars As at 21 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

{i} direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of
which is nat excluslvely invested in corporate debt;

{ii) advances against shares ., bands / debentures or other securities
oF on clean basis to individuals for investment In shares {induding
1POs / E50Ps), convertible bands, convertible debentures, and units of
aguity-oriented mutual funds; N .

(iii}) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or canvertible debentures ar units of equity -oriented mutual
funds are teiten as priniary securlty; - -
livi advances for any other purpaoses to the extent secured by the
collateral security af shares or converlible bonds or converible
deheptures or units of equity ariented mutusl funds i.e. whare the
primary security other than shares / coavertihle bonds / convertible
debentures / units of eguity oriented mutual funds ‘does not fully

caver the advances; - -
{v) secured and unsecured advances 1o stockhrokers and guarantees

issued on behalf of stockbrokers and rmarket makers;

{vi} 1oans sanctioned. to corporates. against. the security of shares !
bends / debentures ar othet securities or on clean basis for meeting
promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in
anticipation of raising resources;

iwii} bridge loans te campanies against expected equity fiows / issuas;

fviii} All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (bath registered and
unregistered} . .
Total Exposure to Capitai Market - -

3, Details of financing of parent Company products: None

4. Detaits of Single Borrowsr Limit {SG1} f Group Borcower Limit (GBL) excaeded by the HFC:
The Company has not exceeded the Sing_le Borrgwer Limit [SBL} / Group Borrower Limit {GBL} during the financials year/period.

5. Unsecursd Advanees : Nong

6, Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

Dascriptior: Amaunt 4 to Net Owned Funds
1) Exponure (o any single entity In a group engaged in reel estate -

.business -
{Ii} Expasure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate business -




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CIN: UB5990MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency : Indian Rupees In lakhs)

VIl Miscellaneaus

1. Registration obtained from ather financial sactor regulators : None
2.-Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and ather regulators : Rs. 8,30 Lakhs.
3. Related Party Transactians : Refer Mote 31

4, Group structure: Refer Nate 31

5. Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year:

Instrument Credit Rating Ageney  "As at 31 March 2021, As at 31 March 2020
Commercial Paper {ARE Al+ Alt
ICRA Al+ CAd+
CRISH, A+ .
Term Laans/NCD's Ingia Ratings and
Research Privatz Ah- Ab-
Umited
CRISIL Ah- -
5. Remuneration of Directors {non executive} : None
1. Additional Disclosures
1. Pravisions and Contingencles
Break up of 'Provistons and Contingencles' shown under the head Asat31March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Expenditure in Profit and Loss Accouat

1. Pravisions for depreciation an investment -

2. Provision made towards Income tax 380.50
3. Provision towvards NPA 22118
4. Provisian far Standard Assets (induding provision on Teaser Loan

Rs. NIL,‘CRE-RH for Rs. NiL & CRE for Rs.NIL {Previous Year Teaser Loan 663,50
Rs. NIL, CRE-RH for Rs. NiL & CRE for Rs. NIt}*

5. Other Provision and Contingencies 70.42

106.70

386.94

4.34

*includes management overlay allowance of Bs. 646.69 lakh {Previous year Rs. 259.67 fakh}.

Housing

Non-Housing

Break up of Luan & Advances and Provisiens therean As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Standard Assets

al Total Curstanding Amount 72,578.22 63,272.51 11,226.63 11,384.68
b) Provisions made 1,092.14 473.63 80.54 4554
Sub-Standard Assets _

al Total Gutstanding Amount 684.68 48252 227.78 115.69
b} Provisions made ' 106.24 95.97 43.82 23.79
Daubtful Assets — Category-)

3 Total Qutstanding Amount 538.31 32.52 §4.27 -

b} Provisions made 160.61 550 16.56 -
Doubtiul Assets — Category-4

2} Total Qutstanding Amount 42.41 - - -

b Provisions made 15.01 - - -
Daubtful Assets - Category-il

a) Total Qutstanding Amount - - - -
b} Provisions made - - - -
Loss Assets

a) Total Gutstanding Amount - - 3.45 3.25
o} Provisions made - - .45 325
TOTAL

aj Total OQutstanding Amount 73,B43.62 63,787.55 1251213 11,503.62
_b} Provisicns made 1,373.98 576.18 15237 72.58

2. Draw Down from Reserves : None
3. Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NFAs

1a. Concentration of Public Deposits {for Public Depesit taking/hoiding HFCs)

Particulars _As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Total Deposits of twenty largest gepositors -
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits
of the HFC -

3. Congentration of Leans & Advances

Particulass Asat 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Tatal Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2,277.3% 2,286 80
Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total C2.67% 3.04%

Advances of the HFE




IndoStar o Finance Frivate Liinitad

FCIN: JESS20MA206PTCATLEHT)

Notes to the financial statermenis for tha year ended 31 March 2021

{Curraacy | indian Rupees in fakhs)

3e. Concanuaticn of all Exposure (including off-balanca sheet expasure)

A at 31 March 2021

Pareiculars: As at 30 March 2020
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrower. feustamers 2,290 46 2.469.1%
Percentage of Exposures to fwenty 1argest he towers f custome-s to _
Total Exposure: of the HFG on borrewers / customers 2.68% 2.15%
5d‘ Coﬁcentralicn of NPAs
Partleulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 530.08 442,30
3a, Sertor-wisa NPAs
: Sgctor As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 BMarch 2020
HE . Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances In that sector
A;Hetalng Enans,
1. Individeals 1.71% DB1%
I Bu:la*rsfPrcmct Loans - .
3 Carparates -
4, Ottiers -
3. Nan-FEonsiag Loans:
TP H 2.45% 1.032%
i£75/ P 2indt lc:m' " .
teates - -
4. h-gvament of Kpas
Parilrula- 3 As at 31 fiarch 2021 A5 an :l 1 March 2620
{I] Nel MiAs to Watbdvances {95} 1.41% 673,
{H} Maverrﬂntof HEAS (Gross)
) Odéning batanca A33.00 7142
ib} Additinas during the vear 1.040.54 57534
sluctinns turing the year {123.62 {1352}
m halance 1.550.40 G33 99
\r'u.\m e ot Net s
ing baiwnze S04.47 48 .50
ti7is duriag the year 0204 46081
Toms duting the year {106.22) R =2 H
rig zatance L0z E04.47
semht of Grovesions for NPAs {m{‘,l-- {ing provisions on
d agsats)
£ balance 129.51 2285
SILns made dunng the year 234.50 1il.1e
ot fyitite-liach o exross prowsions {57.33) {5.48}
ngl balraee 350,65 1:9.01

siay Assets T None

rern Canafalnes

ance Sheel SPV shonsored twhich are required to b2 rauseildated au per acconnting Nazms) ; Node

i Particulzrs

enewved during the y e

l:fm:rr:p.emL zending attna hugu.riruh of th+ year

Brs As at 31 tarch 2073 As at 31 arch 3076
' 3 - 12
144 a4
wad donng the reur 13e an
: i3 ]
f f’p %V«‘ 3
£ % g xﬁ”

He Y
i’ {‘m‘i‘fa ;;;
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tndoStar Home Finance Privata Limited.

{CIN: UB5990MH201EPTC271587)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency . Indian Rupees in fakhs)

Note 40 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Baaking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bankj}
Diractions, 2021 .

Particulars As at March 31, 2021

LiabHities side :
{1 Loans and advances avalled by the HFC Amount putstanding Amount overdue
inclusive of interest acerued therson but not paid:

{a) Dehenture’; Secured. -

: Unsecurad - -
{b) Oeferred Credits - -
{c] Term Loans 24,6592.82
id} Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 39,291.64 -

{ej Commercial Paper - .
{f} Public Deposits (Refer Note 1 below) - -
{g} Other Loans . .

{2) Break-up of {1}{f) above {Outstanding
public deposits inclusive of interest accrued Amouat outstanding amount averdue
thuereon but nat paid}.
{a) In the forin of Unsecured debentures -

(b} i the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there:
is a shortfall in the value of security - -
|c} Other public depasits - .

Assets side :

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills recéivables Amount outstanding

{3) {other than thosa included in {4) below ):
{a} Secured 85,355.75-
{b} Unsecured -

{4 Break up of Leased Assets and stock en hire

R L Amount cutstanding
counting towards AFC activities _

{i) Lease assets inchiding lease rentals under sundry debtors ©
{a) financlaf lease .
{b} Qperating lease .

{li} Stock on Hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
2} Assets on hire
{6) Repossessed Assets

{iiij Other Inans counting towards AFC Activities -
{a} Loans where assets have been repossessed -
(b} Loans other than (2} abave -

[5] Greak-up of Invastinents : Amount outstanding

‘Current [nvestments :

1. Quoted :

{!} Sharas : {3) Equity .
{b} Preferenca .

{i} Debenture and Bands -

{iil} Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government Sacurities .

{v) Others (Please specify] -

2. Unyuoted :
{1} Sharss: [a) Fquity

(b} Preferanca .
{ii} Oebentures and Bonds .
{iit} Units of mutual funds 500.02
Iw) Government Securities R
{v} Others (Please specify} .

Long Term investments.
1. Quoted :
{1} Sharas : (3) Equity -
{b} Praference .
{itj Debantures and Bonds
{iii} Units of mutual funds
{n} Government Seclrities
{v) Others (Flease specify)
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

{CHN: UBSS9OMH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financiat statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Note 40 - Disclosure s required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financlat Company ~ Housing Finanice Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021

Particulars As at March 3%, 2021

2. Unguoted :

{§] Shares: {(a} Equity -
{b) Preference -

{ii) Debenturas and Bonds -

ill} Units.of mutual funds -

liv) Govarnment Securities -

{v} Othars: Pass through certificates -

{8) Borrawer group-wise classification of assets, financed asin {3) and {4] above ;-
Category | Amount { Net of provisions )
Sacured Unsecuced Total
1. Related Farties
{a} Subsidiaries - - ’
(b} Companies in the same graup - - -
{ ¢) Other reiated perifes - - -
2. Other than related partres 85,355.75 - 85,335.75
¥4 Investor group-wise classification of al} investments {curcent and long term)’
in shares and securities (hoth quoted and unquated):
Market Value / Break Book Value
Category
1t or fais value or NAV* {iet of Provislons)
1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries - -
{b} Companies i the same group - .
{'c) Other retated parties - -
2. Other than related parties 50,02 500.02
8) Other infarnation
Particulars Amount

1} Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a} Relaved parties -
1B Other than ralated parties 1,550.80
{iij Net.-Non-Ferfurming Assets
&) Related purties -
{b} Other than refsted parties 1,200.224
{iil) Assets acquiredin satisfaction of debi -
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IndeStar Home Finance Private Limited
{CIM: UBSS90MH2016PTC271587)

Notes to the financial statermnents for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs}

Nate 42 - DISCLOSURE PURSUANT T0O RESERVE BANK OF INDIA CIRCULAR NO, RB1/2019-20/220 DOR.NO.BP. BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20:

Patticulars

FY20621

FY2024

Respective amounts in S_M.i\fmrerdue categories where
the moratorium/ deferment was extended, in terms of
naragranh-2 and 3 of RBt Circular

Respective amount where asset classification benefits is’
extended

Pravisions made in terms of paragraph 5 of RBE Circular
Provisions adjusted durlng the respective accounting.
periods against sligpages in terms of paragraph &

The residual pravislons in terms of paragraph & of RBI
Cireuiar

176741

1,767.41

176.74

176.74

* the Company created provision & 10% in 04 FY2020.

Note 43 - DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA CIRCULAR NO. RBIf2019-20/170 DOR {NBFC).CC.PR.ND.103/22.20.106/2019-26:

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Asset classification Grass Carrying toss Altowances Net Carrying. Provisions Difference
asperind AS168 Amount asper Ind AS  {Provisions) as Amount required as per  between Ind AS
required under Ind IRALP norms 109 provisions
AS 109 and IRACP norms
(1) (2} (3) {a} {5t=13}-(4) {6} (7)=14) -{6}
Parfarming Assets
Standard Stage 1 BO,587.31 595.32 79,991.89 216.43 378.89
) Stage 2 3,217.54 HR7.35 2,630.18 138.49 448 87
Subtotal B3,804.85 1,152.67 82,622.17 554,92 B27.78
Non-Performing Assets {NPA}
Substandard Stage3 912.46 155.06 757.40. 143.47 11.59
Doubtful - up ta 1 year Stage 3 592,58 177.17 415.41 14R:15 8.0
1to 3 yaars Stage 3 42.41 -15.01 27.40 1696 -1.96
Mare than 3 years Stage 3 - - - -
Subtatat for doubtful 534.89 182.18 442,81 165.11 27.07
Loss Stage 3 3.45 3.45 - 3.45 -
Subtotal far NPA 1,550.90 350.69 1,200.22 312.03 38.66
Total 85,355.75 1,533,356 73,822.39 656.95 866,42
Other jtems stich as guarantees, laan comiitrnents, ete. Stage 1 - 486 -1.86 - 485
which are in the scope of lhd A3 109 but no* auvered Stage 2 - - - - -
under clirrent Incomie Recagmtion, Asset Classification Stage3 - - - N -
and Pravisionineg IRACF) norms
Subtotal ) . 4.86 -4.86 - 486
Stage 1 E0,587.31 G00.18 79,987.13 21643 383.45
Total Stage 2 3,217.54 587.35 2,630.18 138.49 448.87
Stage 3 1,550.90 350,69 1,200.22 312.03 38,65
Totat 85,355.75 1,538.22 83,837.53 666.95 BILZT
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IndoStar Hame Finance Private Limited

{C1N: UBS990MHZ016PTC271587)

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency : (ndian Rupeesin lakhs)

Nate 44 - The Company does not have any unhedgad foreign cumrency exposure far the year ended 31 March 2821,

Note §5 -The parath jalinfe ton for tha previous yaar prepared in accordance with ind AS included have been audited by the predecessor auditars, Tha report of the
predacessor auditar expressed an unmodifizd oplnion.

Nate 45 - Figures far the previous years have been regrouped and f ar reclassified wherever considared necessary to canform to current year presentation.

For and an Lehatf of the Board of Olrectors of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Umited

gl

Benatfer Palsetia

Directar
DIN: G20BI 220 DIN: 08678348
XL gﬁ |
a4
Prashant Shetty Prival Shah
Chief Elnancial Officer {ompany Secratary

Place; Mumbal
Date; June 14,2021




